
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

City of Dripping Springs  

Council Chambers, 511 Mercer St, Dripping Springs, TX  

Tuesday, November 09, 2021 at 6:30 PM  

Agenda 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

Commission Members 
Mim James, Chair 

James Martin, Vice Chair 

Christian Bourguignon 

Doug Crosson 

John McIntosh 

Evelyn Strong 

Tammie Williamson 

Staff, Consultants and Appointed/Elected Officials 
City Administrator Michelle Fisher 

Deputy City Administrator Ginger Faught 

City Attorney Laura Mueller 

City Secretary Andrea Cunningham 

Planning Director Howard Koontz 

Senior Planner Tory Carpenter 

City Engineer Chad Gilpin 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

PRESENTATION OF CITIZENS 

A member of the public who desires to address the Commission regarding any item on an agenda for an 

open meeting may do so at presentation of citizens before an item or at a public hearing for an item during 

the Commission’s consideration of that item. Citizens wishing to discuss matters not contained within the 

current agenda may do so, but only during the time allotted for presentation of citizens. Speakers are 

allowed two (2) minutes to speak during presentation of citizens or during each public hearing. Speakers 

may not cede or pool time. Members of the public requiring the assistance of a translator will be given 

twice the amount of time as a member of the public who does not require the assistance of a translator to 

address the Commission. It is the request of the Commission that members of the public wishing to speak 

on item(s) on the agenda with a noticed Public Hearing hold their comments until the item(s) are presented 

for consideration. Speakers are encouraged to sign in. Anyone may request a copy of the City’s policy on 

presentation of citizens from the city secretary. By law no action may be taken during Presentation of 

Citizens. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

The following items are anticipated to require little or no individualized discussion due to their nature 

being clerical, ministerial, mundane or routine. In an effort to enhance the efficiency of Planning & 

Zoning Commission meetings, it is intended that these items will be acted upon by the Planning & Zoning 

1



Commission with a single motion because no public hearing or determination is necessary. However, a 

Planning & Zoning Commission Member or citizen may request separate deliberation for a specific item, 

in which event those items will be removed from the consent agenda prior to the Planning & Zoning 

Commission voting on the consent agenda as a collective, singular item. Prior to voting on the consent 

agenda, the Planning & Zoning Commission may add additional items that are listed elsewhere on the 

same agenda. 

1. Approval of the October 12, 2021 and October 26, 2021, Planning & Zoning Commission 

regular meeting minutes. 

2. Disapproval of SUB2021-0060: an application for Parten Ranch Phase 6 & 7 Preliminary 

Plat for a 129.0 acre tract located on Parten Ranch Parkway near Running Bird Road 

out of the Seaborn J. Whatley and Lamar Moore Surveys. Applicant: Dan Ryan, LJA 

Engineering 

3. Disapproval of SUB2021-0061: an application for Big Sky Ranch Phase 3 Final Plat for 

a 81.71 acre tract located at the intersection of Sue Peaks Loop and Diablo Rim Terrace 

out of the Philip A. Smith Survey. Applicant: Christopher Reid, Doucet & Associates. 

4. Disapproval of SUB2021-0062: an application for Big Sky Ranch Phase 4 Final Plat for 

a 212.4 acre tract located at the intersection of Lone Peak Way and Bartlett Peak Lane 

out of the Philip A. Smith Survey. Applicant: Christopher Reid, Doucet & Associates. 

5. Approval of SUB2020-0040: an application for Esperanza Phase 2 Final Plat for a 52.4 

acre tract located at the intersection of Bell Springs Road and Prairie Clover Drive out 

of the B.F. Hannah Survey. Applicant: Adrian Rosas, TRE & Associates. 

6. Approval of SUB2021-0046: an application for Driftwood GRC Phase 3 Final Plat for a 

56.33 acre tract located on Driftwood Ranch Drive out of the Freelove Woody 

Survey. Applicant: Ronee Gilbert, Murphee Engineering Company. 

7. Disapproval of SUB2021-0064: an application for Caliterra Phase 4 Section 11 Final Plat 

for a 39.911 acre tract located at Soaring Hill Road and Fish Trap Road out of the Philip 

A. Smith Survey. Applicant: Bill Coach, Carlson Brigance and Doering.  

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Planning & Zoning Commission for the City of Dripping Springs has the right to adjourn into 

executive session at any time during the course of this meeting to  discuss any matter as authorized by 

Texas Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney),  551.072 (Deliberations about 

Real Property), 551.073 Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 551.074 Personnel Matters), 551.076 

(Deliberations about Security Devices), and 551.086 (Economic Development). The Planning & Zoning 

Commission for the City of Dripping Springs may act on any item listed in Executive Session in Open 

Session or move any item from Executive Session to Open Session for action. 

8. Consultation with City Attorney related to planning matters, wastewater capacity, 

comprehensive plan, and processes related to approvals.  551.071, Consultation with City 

Attorney.  

UPCOMING MEETINGS 

2



Planning & Zoning Commission Meetings 
November 23, 2021, at 6:30 p.m. 

December 14, 2021, at 6:30 p.m. 

December 28, 2021, at 6:30 p.m. 

City Council & BOA Meetings 
November 16, 2021, at 6:00 p.m. (CC) 

December 7, 2021, at 6:00 p.m. (CC & BOA) 

December 21, 2021, at 6:00 p.m. (CC) 

ADJOURN 

TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT PUBLIC NOTIFICATION & POSTING OF MEETING 

All agenda items listed above are eligible for discussion and action unless otherwise specifically 

noted.  This notice of meeting is posted in accordance with Chapter 551, Government Code, Vernon's 

Texas Codes. Annotated.  In addition, the Commission may consider a vote to excuse the absence of any 

Commissioner for absence from this meeting. 

I certify that this notice of meeting was posted at the City of Dripping Springs City Hall and website, 

www.cityofdrippingsprings.com, on November 5, 2021, at 11:00 a.m. 

 

 

 
City Secretary 

 

This facility is wheelchair accessible. Accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for auxiliary aids and 

services must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting by calling (512) 858-4725. 

3



 

Planning & Zoning Commission  October 12, 2021 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 1 of 4 

 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING 

City of Dripping Springs 

Council Chambers, 511 Mercer St, Dripping Springs, TX 

Tuesday, October 12, 2021 at 6:30 PM 

MINUTES 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

With a quorum of the Commission present, Chair James called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

Commission Members present were: 
Mim James, Chair 

James Martin, Vice Chair 

Christian Bourguignon 

Doug Crosson 

John McIntosh 

Evelyn Strong 

Tammie Williamson 

Staff, Consultants & Appointed/Elected Officials 
Deputy City Administrator Ginger Faught 

City Secretary Andrea Cunningham 

Planning Director Howard Koontz 

Senior Planner Tory Carpenter 

City Engineer Chad Gilpin 

Transportation Consultant Leslie Pollack 

Mayor Pro Tem Taline Manassian 

Council Member Sherrie Parks 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Commissioner McIntosh led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 

PRESENTATION OF CITIZENS 

A member of the public who desires to address the Commission regarding any item on an agenda for an 

open meeting may do so at presentation of citizens before an item or at a public hearing for an item during 

the Commission’s consideration of that item. Citizens wishing to discuss matters not contained within the 

current agenda may do so, but only during the time allotted for presentation of citizens. Speakers are 

allowed two (2) minutes to speak during presentation of citizens or during each public hearing. Speakers 

may not cede or pool time. Members of the public requiring the assistance of a translator will be given 

twice the amount of time as a member of the public who does not require the assistance of a translator to 

address the Commission. It is the request of the Commission that members of the public wishing to speak 

on item(s) on the agenda with a noticed Public Hearing hold their comments until the item(s) are presented 

for consideration. Speakers are encouraged to sign in. Anyone may request a copy of the City’s policy on 

4

Item 1.



 

Planning & Zoning Commission  October 12, 2021 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 4 

presentation of citizens from the city secretary. By law no action may be taken during Presentation of 

Citizens. 

 

 No one spoke during Presentation of Citizens. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

The following items are anticipated to require little or no individualized discussion due to their nature 

being clerical, ministerial, mundane or routine. In an effort to enhance the efficiency of Planning & 

Zoning Commission meetings, it is intended that these items will be acted upon by the Planning & Zoning 

Commission with a single motion because no public hearing or determination is necessary. However, a 

Planning & Zoning Commission Member or citizen may request separate deliberation for a specific item, 

in which event those items will be removed from the consent agenda prior to the Planning & Zoning 

Commission voting on the consent agenda as a collective, singular item. Prior to voting on the consent 

agenda, the Planning & Zoning Commission may add additional items that are listed elsewhere on the 

same agenda. 

 

Via unanimous consent, the Commission considered Consent Agenda Items individually. 

1. Approval of the September 28, 2021, Planning & Zoning Commission regular meeting 

minutes. 

 

A motion was made by Vice Chair Martin to approve the September 28,2021, Planning & 

Zoning Commission regular meeting minutes.  Commissioner Crosson seconded the motion 

which carried unanimously 6 to 0 to 0, with Commissioner Bourguignon abstaining. 

 

2. Approval of the 2022 Planning & Zoning Commission meeting calendar. 

 

A motion was made by Commissioner Williamson to approve the 2022 Planning & Zoning 

Commission meeting calendar.  Vice Chair Martin seconded the motion which carried 

unanimously 7 to 0. 

 

3. Disapproval of SUB2021-0052: an application for Cannon Ranch Preliminary Plat for a 

100.58 acre tract located at the intersection of Cannon Ranch Road and US 290 out of 

the Philip A. Smith Survey No. 26, Abstract 415 and the C.H. Malott Survey, Abstract 

693. Applicant: Jake Helmburg, Doucet & Associates 

 

A motion was made by Vice Chair Martin to deny approval of SUB2021-0052: an application 

for Cannon Ranch Preliminary Plat for a 100.58 acre tract located at the intersection of 

Cannon Ranch Road and US 290 out of the Philip A. Smith Survey No. 26, Abstract 415 and 

the C.H. Malott Survey, Abstract 693.  Commissioner McIntosh seconded the motion which 

carried unanimously 7 to 0. 

 

4. Disapproval of SUB2021-0054: an application for Driftwood Phase 2 Final Plat for a 

19.30 acre tract located along the west side of Thurman Roberts Way north of its 

intersection with RM 1826 out of the Freelove Woody Survey, Abstract 20. Applicant: 

Tory Miller, P.E., Murphee Engineering Company 

 

5

Item 1.



 

Planning & Zoning Commission  October 12, 2021 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 4 

A motion was made by Vice Chair Martin to deny approval of SUB2021-0054: an application 

for Driftwood Phase 2 Final Plat for a 19.30 acre tract located along the west side of Thurman 

Roberts Way north of its intersection with RM 1826 out of the Freelove Woody Survey, 

Abstract 20.  Commissioner McIntosh seconded the motion which carried unanimously 6 to 

0 to 0, with Commissioner Crosson abstaining.   

BUSINESS 

5. Discuss and consider recommendation regarding an Ordinance Amending Article 22.04 

– Transportation Plan, Section 22.04.001, and related to Adoption of the 2021 

Transportation Master Plan. 

a. Presentation and Staff Report – Leslie Pollack gave a presentation which is on file.  

Staff recommends approval of the plan. 

b. Public Hearing – The following individuals spoke regarding the plan citing concerns 

with roundabouts, city and county continuity, impact on existing neighborhoods and 

landowners, encroachment on private property and the 150 extension. 

Chris Hill  Jan Wesson  Jason Wesson 

Yolanda Smith Patricia Arvidson Karen Hill 

Mary Beth Allsure Kathy Epperson 

c. Transportation Master Plan – A motion was made by Vice Chair Martin to 

recommend City Council approval of an Ordinance Amending Article 22.04 – 

Transportation Plan, Section 22.04.001, and related to Adoption of the 2021 

Transportation Master Plan.  Commissioner Bourguignon seconded the motion which 

carried unanimously 7 to 0. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Planning & Zoning Commission for the City of Dripping Springs has the right to adjourn into 

executive session at any time during the course of this meeting to  discuss any matter as authorized by 

Texas Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney),  551.072 (Deliberations about 

Real Property), 551.073 Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 551.074 Personnel Matters), 551.076 

(Deliberations about Security Devices), and 551.086 (Economic Development). The Planning & Zoning 

Commission for the City of Dripping Springs may act on any item listed in Executive Session in Open 

Session or move any item from Executive Session to Open Session for action. 

 

The Commission did not meet in Executive Session. 

UPCOMING MEETINGS 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meetings 
October 26, 2021, at 6:30 p.m. 

November 9, 2021, at 6:30 p.m. 

November 23, 2021, at 6:30 p.m. 

City Council & BOA Meetings 
October 19, 2021, at 6:00 p.m. (CC) 

6

Item 1.



 

Planning & Zoning Commission  October 12, 2021 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 4 of 4 

November 2, 2021, at 6:00 p.m. (CC & BOA) 

November 16, 2021, at 6:00 p.m. (CC) 

ADJOURN 

A motion was made by Vice Chair Martin to adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner Strong seconded the 

motion which carried unanimously 7 to 0. 

This regular meeting adjourned at 7:48 p.m. 

 

7

Item 1.



 

Planning & Zoning Commission  October 26, 2021 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 1 of 4 

 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING 

City of Dripping Springs 

Council Chambers, 511 Mercer St, Dripping Springs, TX 

Tuesday, October 26, 2021 at 6:30 PM 

MINUTES 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

With a quorum of the Commission present, Chair James called the meeting to order at 6:31 p.m. 

Commission Members present were: 
Mim James, Chair 

James Martin, Vice Chair 

Christian Bourguignon 

Tammie Williamson 

Commission Members absent were:  
John McIntosh 

Doug Crosson 

Evelyn Strong 

Staff, Consultants & Appointed/Elected Officials present were: 
City Secretary Andrea Cunningham 

Planning Director Howard Koontz 

Senior Planner Tory Carpentar 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Vice Chair Martin led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 

PRESENTATION OF CITIZENS 

A member of the public who desires to address the Commission regarding any item on an agenda for an 

open meeting may do so at presentation of citizens before an item or at a public hearing for an item during 

the Commission’s consideration of that item. Citizens wishing to discuss matters not contained within the 

current agenda may do so, but only during the time allotted for presentation of citizens. Speakers are 

allowed two (2) minutes to speak during presentation of citizens or during each public hearing. Speakers 

may not cede or pool time. Members of the public requiring the assistance of a translator will be given 

twice the amount of time as a member of the public who does not require the assistance of a translator to 

address the Commission. It is the request of the Commission that members of the public wishing to speak 

on item(s) on the agenda with a noticed Public Hearing hold their comments until the item(s) are presented 

for consideration. Speakers are encouraged to sign in. Anyone may request a copy of the City’s policy on 

presentation of citizens from the city secretary. By law no action may be taken during Presentation of 

Citizens. 

 

8

Item 1.



 

Planning & Zoning Commission  October 26, 2021 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 4 

 No one spoke during Presentation of Citizens. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

The following items are anticipated to require little or no individualized discussion due to their nature 

being clerical, ministerial, mundane or routine. In an effort to enhance the efficiency of Planning & 

Zoning Commission meetings, it is intended that these items will be acted upon by the Planning & Zoning 

Commission with a single motion because no public hearing or determination is necessary. However, a 

Planning & Zoning Commission Member or citizen may request separate deliberation for a specific item, 

in which event those items will be removed from the consent agenda prior to the Planning & Zoning 

Commission voting on the consent agenda as a collective, singular item. Prior to voting on the consent 

agenda, the Planning & Zoning Commission may add additional items that are listed elsewhere on the 

same agenda. 

1. Disapproval of SUB2021-0048: an application to consider the final plat of Driftwood 

Phase 1 Section 4, an approximately 4.723 acre tract of land situated in the Fannie A. 

Darden Survey, Tract A, in Hays County, Texas.  Applicant: Stephen Delgado, Atwell, 

LLC. 

2. Disapproval of SUB2021-0058: an application to consider the final plat of Parten Ranch 

Phase 4 an approximately 73.81 acre tract of land situated in the Lamar Moore Survey 

Abstract 323 in Hays County, Texas.  Applicant: Daniel Ryan, LJA Engineering 

A motion was made by Vice Chair Martin to approve Consent Agenda Items 1 and 2, denying 

approval of SUB2021-0048 and SUB2021-0058.  Commissioner Williamson seconded the motion 

which carried unanimously 4 to 0. 

BUSINESS 

3. Public hearing and consideration of a recommendation regarding ZA2021-0008: an 

application for a zoning amendment and Conditional Use Overlay to consider a 

proposed zoning map amendment from Two-Family Residential - Duplex (SF-4) to 

Single Family Residential - Town Center (SF-3) for an approximately 1.85 acres out of 

the W T Chapman # 5 subdivision. Applicant: John Doucet, P.E., Doucet & Associates, Inc. 

a. Presentation – John Doucet gave a presentation which is on file. 

 

b. Staff Report – Tory Carpenter presented the staff report which is on file.  Staff 

recommends approval of the application for zoning amendment and conditional use 

overlay. 

 

c. Public Hearing – No one spoke during the Public Hearing. 

d. Zoning Amendment – A motion was made by Vice Chair Martin to approve ZA2021-

0008: an application for a zoning amendment and Conditional Use Overlay to consider a 

proposed zoning map amendment from Two-Family Residential - Duplex (SF-4) to 

Single Family Residential - Town Center (SF-3) for an approximately 1.85 acres out of 

the W T Chapman # 5 subdivision.  Commissioner Bourguignon seconded the motion 

which carried unanimously 4 to 0. 

9

Item 1.



 

Planning & Zoning Commission  October 26, 2021 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 4 

4. Public hearing and consideration of recommendation regarding VAR2021-0021: an 

application for a variance to allow a structure to be built within the rear setback at 430 

Goodnight Trail. Applicant: Antoine Myc. 

a. Presentation – No presentation was given.  Applicant has requested withdrawal of the 

application. 

 

b. Staff Report – Tory Carpenter’s staff report is on file.  The applicant has requested 

the application be withdrawn. 

 

c. Public Hearing – No one spoke during the Public Hearing. 

 

d. Variance – A motion was made by Commissioner Bourguignon to accept the 

withdrawal request regarding VAR2021-0021: an application for a variance to allow a 

structure to be built within the rear setback at 430 Goodnight Trail.  Commissioner 

Williamson seconded the motion which carried unanimously 4 to 0. 

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT REPORTS 

5. Planning Department Report 

a. Update on upcoming PDD requests – Howard Koontz and Tory Carpenter 

presented the update which is on file. 

1) New Growth 

2) Village Grove 

b. Future Meeting Times and Schedules – Howard Koontz discussed meeting 

frequency and time and options for meetings in 2022. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Planning & Zoning Commission for the City of Dripping Springs has the right to adjourn into 

executive session at any time during the course of this meeting to  discuss any matter as authorized by 

Texas Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney),  551.072 (Deliberations about 

Real Property), 551.073 Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 551.074 Personnel Matters), 551.076 

(Deliberations about Security Devices), and 551.086 (Economic Development). The Planning & Zoning 

Commission for the City of Dripping Springs may act on any item listed in Executive Session in Open 

Session or move any item from Executive Session to Open Session for action. 

 

 The Commission did not meet in Executive Session. 

UPCOMING MEETINGS 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meetings 
November 9, 2021, at 6:30 p.m. 

November 23, 2021, at 6:30 p.m. 

City Council & BOA Meetings 
November 2, 2021, at 6:00 p.m. (CC & BOA) 

10

Item 1.



 

Planning & Zoning Commission  October 26, 2021 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 4 of 4 

November 16, 2021, at 6:00 p.m. (CC) 

December 7, 2021, at 6:00 p.m. (CC & BOA) 

December 21, 2021, at 6:00 p.m. (CC) 

ADJOURN 

A motion was made by Vice Chair Martin to adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner Bourguignon seconded 

the  motion which carried unanimously 7 to 0. 

This regular meeting adjourned at 7:39 p.m. 

 

 

11

Item 1.



 
 

 
Planning & Zoning Commission 

Planning Department Staff Report 

 

P&Z Meeting: November 9, 2021 

Project Number:  SUB2021-0060 

Project Planner: Tory Carpenter, Senior Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: Parten Ranch, Phases 6 & 7 

Property Location:  Parten Ranch Parkway near Running Bird Road 

Legal Description:  129.0 acres out of the Seaborn J. Whatley and Lamar Moore surveys  

Applicant: Dan Ryan, P.E. – LJA Engineering, Inc. 

Property Owner: HM Parten ranch Development, Inc. 

Request: A residential preliminary plat.   

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
12

Item 2.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

Overview 

The applicant is requesting approval of a preliminary plat consisting of 122 residential lots.  

 

 

Action Requested 

 

Disapproval to address comments.  
 

Site Information 

 

Location:  

Cannon Ranch Road at US 290.  

 

Zoning Designation:  N/A (ETJ) 

 

Property History  

A development agreement was approved for this property in 2016. Preliminary plats for phase 1 thru 5 have been approved 

and phase 8 is the only outstanding phase after approval of this preliminary plat.  

 

Recommendation 

 

Staff is recommending disapproval.  

 
Attachments 

Exhibit 1 – Plat 

Exhibit 2 - Application 

 

Recommended Action: Disapproval.  

Budget/Financial Impact:    All fees have been paid.  

Public Comments: None Received at this time. 

Enforcement Issues: N/A 

 

13

Item 2.



14

Item 2.



15

Item 2.



16

Item 2.



17

Item 2.



18

Item 2.



19

Item 2.



20

Item 2.

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight



21

Item 2.

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight



22

Item 2.



23

Item 2.



24

Item 2.



25

Item 2.



26

Item 2.



27

Item 2.



28

Item 2.



29

Item 2.



30

Item 2.



31

Item 2.



32

Item 2.



      

 

     

 

 

 

     

      

Date: November 5, 2021 
 

   

      

Alyssa Flynn 

LJA Engineering 

7500 Rialto Blvd, 
Austin TX 78736 

aflynn@lja.com 
 

   

      

Permit Number: SUB2021-0060 

Project Name: Parten Ranch Phase 6 & 7 Preliminary Plan 

Project Address:  
 

  

      

City staff has completed its review of the above-named project. Reviewer comments are provided below. These 
comments are intended to be comprehensive; however, there may be additional comments after reviewing the submitted 
corrections. Applicants are encouraged to contact reviewers directly with questions.  

 

      

City Planner Comments 

The following comments have been provided by Tory Carpenter. Should you have any questions or require additional 
information, please contact Tory Carpenter by email tcarpenter@cityofdrippingsprings.com. 

  1. Provide Hays County 1445 approval letter.  

  2. Will phases 6 & 7 be included on the same final plat? If not, show boundary lines for each phase (4.7(n)).  

  3. Provide documentation for approval of the street names from Hays County (4.7(d)). 

Engineer/Public Works Comments 

The following comments have been provided by Chad Gilpin. Should you have any questions or require additional 
information, please contact Chad Gilpin by email cgilpin@cityofdrippingsprings.com. 

  4. The WW line across Lot 7, Block L should be in a WW easement. 
 
5. Provide Engineers Summary Report [Application Checklist] 
 
6. Provide Water and Wastewater will serve letters. [Application Checklist] 
 
7. Provide copy of the Geologic Assessment [[Application Checklist] 
 

 

      

33

Item 2.



11/5/2021 9:44:56 AM 
Parten Ranch Phase 6 & 7 Preliminary Plan 
SUB2021-0060 
Page 2 

 

 

  

All resubmittals must be transmitted to the Planning Department at the City of Dripping Springs or uploaded to 
www.mygovernmentonline.org**.  
 

Resubmittals must include a cover letter addressing each reviewer comment and noting where associated 
corrections/revisions/changes can be found in the submittal documents. Please keep previous review comments on 
the document as you resubmit your response letter, so that staff can keep track of the original comments. 
Resubmittals that do not include a cover letter will be considered incomplete and returned.  
 

Note regarding plats subject to Planning and Zoning Commission review: Resubmittals of corrected plats and associated 
plans must be received no later than seven (7) calendar days prior to the scheduled P&Z meeting for final review and 
inclusion in the P&Z packets [Ch. 28, Ex. A, Sec. 3.8]. 
 

Note regarding Site Development Plans: Revisions must be submitted within 60 days of the date of this letter or a new 
application will be required [Sec. 28.04.011]. 

 

      

Regards,  
 

Tory Carpenter,  
 

 

****If you are wanting to resubmit on My Government Online, go to www.mygovernmentonline.org and login using 
your customer portal account.  After login, click the My Account link located at the top right section of the screen to 
open the My Account Dashboard.  Scroll down to the "My Permits" section and locate the project.  Click "View Permit" 
to open the project.  Scroll down to the section of your project labeled "Customer Documents."  Click the "Add New 
File" link located to the far right to upload your files.  The jurisdiction will be notified automatically after you've 
uploaded the files.  If you are new to the MyGovernmentOnline customer portal, please note that instructions are 
available on the portal by clicking the "HELP" link or you may call the technical support line at 1-866-957-3764, option 1 
for assistance using the online portal. 

 

      

 

34

Item 2.



 
 

 
Planning & Zoning Commission 

Planning Department Staff Report 

 

P&Z Meeting: November 9, 2021 

Project Number:  SUB2021-0061 

Project Planner: Tory Carpenter, Senior Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: Big Sky Phase 3 

Property Location:  Sue Peaks Loop and Diablo Rim Terrace 

Legal Description:  81.71 acres out of the Philip A. Smith Survey 

Applicant: Christopher Reid, P.E. – Doucet & Associates 

Property Owner: Meritage Homes of Texas, LLC 

Request: A residential final plat.   

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
35

Item 3.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

Overview 

The applicant is requesting approval of a final plat consisting of 215 residential lots.  

 

 

Action Requested 

 

Disapproval to address comments.  
 

Site Information 

 

Location:  

Sue Peaks Loop and Diablo Rim Terrace 

 

Zoning Designation:  PDD 10 

 

Property History  

PDD 10 was approved in October 2018 and the revised preliminary plat was approved May 2021.  

 

Recommendation 

 

Staff is recommending disapproval.  

 
Attachments 

Exhibit 1 – Plat 

Exhibit 2 - Application 

 

Recommended Action: Disapproval.  

Budget/Financial Impact:    All fees have been paid.  

Public Comments: None Received at this time. 

Enforcement Issues: N/A 

 

36

Item 3.



City of Dripping Springs 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 

Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com 

Revised 10.2.2019 Page 1 of 12 

SUBDIVISION APPLICATION 

CONTACT INFORMATION 

  Case Number (staff use only): ________-____ 

MEETINGS REQUIRED  
(AS APPLICABLE PER SITE DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE) 

INFORMAL 
CONSULTATION 

PRE-APPLICATION 
CONFERENCE 

DATE: 
______________       
☐ NOT
SCHEDULED 

DATE: 
______________       
☐ NOT SCHEDULED

APPLICANT NAME____________________________________________________________________________________ 
COMPANY __________________________________________________________________________________________ 
STREET ADDRESS_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
CITY_______________________________STATE_________________________ ZIP CODE __________________________ 
PHONE________________________ EMAIL_______________________________________________________________ 

OWNER NAME____________________________________________________________________________________ 
COMPANY __________________________________________________________________________________________ 
STREET ADDRESS_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
CITY_______________________________STATE_________________________ ZIP CODE __________________________ 
PHONE________________________ EMAIL_______________________________________________________________ 

PLAT TYPE 

� Amending Plat 

� Minor Plat 

� Replat 

� Final Plat 

� Plat Vacation 

� Other:_______________ 

Christopher Reid, PE
Doucet 

7401B Hwy. 71 W., Ste. 160
Austin Texas 78735

(512)583-2600 creid@doucetengineers.com

Meritage Homes of Texas, LLC
8920 Business Park Drive, Suite 350

Austin Texas 78759

(512) 610-4853

Elliot Jones

elliot.jones@meritagehomes.com

9/28/21

37

Item 3.



 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 2 of 12 

 

 

PROPERTY INFORMATION 
PROPERTY OWNER NAME  

PROPERTY ADDRESS  

CURRENT LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION  

 

TAX ID #  

LOCATED IN  � City Limits 

� Extraterritorial Jurisdiction 

CURRENT LAND ACREAGE  

SCHOOL DISTRICT  

ESD DISTRICT(S)   

ZONING/PDD/OVERLAY  

EXISTING ROAD FRONTAGE � Private                                Name: _____________________ 

� State                                    Name: _____________________  

� City/County (public)          Name: _____________________ 

DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT?  

(If so, please attach 
agreement) 

� Yes (see attached)  

� Not Applicable  

Development Agreement Name: _____________________________ 

 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION 

IS PROPERTY OVER THE EDWARDS AQUIFER RECHARGE ZONE? � YES    � NO 

IS PROPERTY OVER THE BARTON SPRINGS CONTRIBUTING ZONE TO THE 
EDWARDS AQUIFER? 

� YES    � NO 

IS PROPERTY WITHIN A FEMA FLOODPLAIN AS DEFINED BY THE MOST CURRENT 
FIRM?  

� YES    � NO 

 

 

 

 

Meritage Homes of Texas, LLC

n/a

ABS 415 Philip A Smith Survey

R18077

PDD 10

Scott Ranch

Sue Peaks Loop

Dripping Springs Independent School District

ESD 6

212.4

38

Item 3.



 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 3 of 12 

 

 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

PROPOSED SUBDIVISION 
NAME 

 

TOTAL ACREAGE OF 
DEVELOPMENT 

 

TOTAL NUMBER OF LOTS  

AVERAGE SIZE OF LOTS  

INTENDED USE OF LOTS � RESIDENTIAL     � COMMERCIAL    � INDUSTRIAL/OTHER:________________ 

# OF LOTS PER USE RESIDENTIAL: _______________ 

COMMERCIAL: ______________ 

INDUSTRIAL:________________ 

 

ACREAGE PER USE RESIDENTIAL: _______________ 

COMMERCIAL: ______________ 

INDUSTRIAL:________________ 

 

LINEAR FEET (ADDED) OF 
PROPOSED ROADS 

PUBLIC:________________ 

PRIVATE:_______________ 

ANTICIPATED 
WASTEWATER SYSTEM 

� CONVENTIONAL SEPTIC SYSTEM 

� CLASS I (AEROBIC) PERMITTED SYSTEM 

� PUBLIC SEWER                

WATER SOURCES SURFACE WATER 

� PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY 

� RAIN WATER 

GROUND WATER* 

� PUBLIC WELL 

� SHARED WELL 

� PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY                

*IF DOING GROUND WATER PROVISION FOR THE DEVELOPMENT USING GROUNDWATER RESOURCES, 
THE HAYS-TRINITY GROUNDWATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT MUST BE NOTIFIED:  

HAYS-TRINITY GCD NOTIFIED?       � YES    � NO 

Big Sky Ranch Phase 3 at Dripping Springs

81.71 acres

81.71

Not applicable

224

7,901 SF

8,959

215

39

Item 3.



 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 4 of 12 

 

 

COMMENTS: ________________________________________ 

 

TITLE: ______________________ SIGNATURE: _________________________________ 

 

 

PUBLIC UTILITY CHECKLIST 

 

ELECTRIC PROVIDER NAME (if applicable): _______________________________________________ 

� VERIFICATION LETTER ATTACHED    � NOT APPLICABLE  

 

COMMUNICATIONS PROVIDER NAME (if applicable): ______________________________________ 

� VERIFICATION LETTER ATTACHED    � NOT APPLICABLE  

 

WATER PROVIDER NAME (if applicable): _________________________________________________ 

� VERIFICATION LETTER ATTACHED    � NOT APPLICABLE  

 

WASTEWATER PROVIDER NAME (if applicable): ___________________________________________ 

� VERIFICATION LETTER ATTACHED    � NOT APPLICABLE  

 

GAS PROVIDER NAME (if applicable): ____________________________________________________ 

� VERIFICATION LETTER ATTACHED    � NOT APPLICABLE  

 

 

 

 

PARKLAND DEDICATION? AGRICULTURE FACILITIES (FINAL PLAT)? 

� YES    � NOT APPLICABLE � YES    � NOT APPLICABLE 

 

 

 

Senior Project Manager

Pedernales Electric Cooperative (PEC)

Charter Communications dba Spectrum

Dripping Springs Water Supply Corporation

City of Dripping Springs

Texas Gas Service

10/1/21

40

Item 3.



 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 5 of 12 

 

 

COMPLIANCE WITH OUTDOOR LIGHTING ORDINANCE?* 

 

(See attached agreement) 

 

*If proposed subdivision is in the City Limits, compliance with the Lighting Ordinance is mandatory. If 
proposed subdivision is in the ETJ, compliance is mandatory when required by a Development 
Agreement, or as a condition of an Alternative Standard/Special Exception/Variance/Waiver.  

 

Voluntary compliance is strongly encouraged by those not required by above criteria (see Outdoor 
Lighting tab on the city’s website at www.cityofdrippingsprings.com and online Lighting Ordinance 
under the Code of Ordinances tab for more information).  

 

� YES (REQUIRED)    � YES (VOLUNTARY*)   � NO  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

41

Item 3.



10/01/2021

10/1/21

42

Item 3.



 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 7 of 12 

 

All required items and information (including all applicable below listed exhibits and fees) must be 
received by the City for an application and request to be considered complete. Incomplete submissions 
will not be deemed filed and complete. By signing below, I acknowledge that I have read through and 
met all requirements for a complete submittal:  

 

Applicants Signature: _________________________________   Date: _________________________________ 

  

                                                         

FINAL, REPLAT, MINOR, AND AMENDING PLAT CHECKLIST  

Subdivision Ordinance, Section 5 
STAFF APPLICANT  

� � Completed application form – including all required notarized signatures  

� � Application fee (refer to Fee Schedule) 

� � Digital Copies/PDF of all submitted items  

� � County Application Submittal – proof of online submission (if applicable)  

� � ESD #6 Application (if within City or Development Agreement) or  

Proof of Submittal to Hays County Fire Marshal (if in the ETJ) 

� � $240 Fee for ESD #6 Application (if applicable)  

� � Billing Contact Form 

� � Engineer’s Summary Report 

� � Drainage Report – if not included in the Engineer’s summary 

� � Geological Assessment Identifying Critical Environmental Features [Sub. Ord. 
4.8(I)(4)] (if applicable) 

� � OSSF Facility Planning Report or approved OSSF permit (if applicable) 

� � Final Plats (11 x 17 to scale)   

� � Copy of Current Configuration of Plat (if applicable)  

� � Copy of Preliminary Plat (if applicable)  

� � Proof of final acceptance of all public infrastructure by the jurisdiction that will own 
and maintain it; or posting of fiscal for public infrastructure.  

� � Digital Data (GIS) of Subdivision 

� � Tax Certificates – verifying that property taxes are current 

� � Copy of Notice Letter to the School District – notifying of preliminary submittal 

� � Outdoor Lighting Ordinance Compliance Agreement 

N/A

N/A

N/A

10/1/21

43

Item 3.

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight



 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 8 of 12 

 

� � Development Agreement/PDD (If applicable) 

� � Cost estimate of public infrastructure improvements (all public infrastructure 
improvements including water, wastewater, roads, drainage, curbs, sidewalks, etc.) 
(if applicable).  

*A Final Plat application will not be accepted if staff has not already approved this. 

� � Documentation showing approval of driveway locations (TxDOT, County)  

� � Documentation showing Hays County 911 Addressing approval (If applicable) 

� � Parkland Dedication fee (if applicable)  

� � $25 Public Notice Sign Fee 

� � Ag Facility Fees - $35 per residential LUE (if applicable) 

� � Proof of Utility Service (Water & Wastewater) or permit to serve 

� � Geologic Assessment Identifying Critical Environmental Features [Sub. Ord. 4.8(I)(4)] 

� � Pre-Application Meeting Form signed by City Staff 

 

FINAL PLAT INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS 

� � A vicinity, or location, map that shows the location of the proposed Plat within 
the City (or within its ETJ) and in relationship to existing roadways. 

� � Boundary lines, abstract/survey lines, corporate and other jurisdictional 
boundaries, existing or proposed highways and street right-of-way, bearings 
and distances sufficient to locate the exact area proposed for the subdivision, 
and all survey monuments including any required concrete monuments (per 
the City Engineer); the length and bearing of all straight lines, radii, arc lengths, 
tangent lengths and central angles of all curves shall be indicated along the 
lines of each lot or Unit (curve and line data may be placed in a table format); 
accurate reference ties via courses and distances to at least one recognized 
abstract or survey corner or existing subdivision corner shall be shown. 

� � The name, location and recording information of all adjacent subdivisions (or 
property owners of adjacent unplatted property), including those located on 
the other sides of roads or creeks, shall be drawn to the same scale and shown 
in dotted lines adjacent to the tract proposed for subdivision in sufficient 
detail to show accurately the existing streets, alleys, building setbacks, lot and 
block numbering, easements, and other features that may influence the 
layout of development of the proposed subdivision; adjacent unplatted land 
shall show property lines, the names of owners of record, and the recording 
information. 

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Meeting was held 9/28/21, no 
form was provided.

44

Item 3.

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight



 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 9 of 12 

 

� � The location, widths and names of all street right-of-way and easements (it 
shall be the applicant’s responsibility to coordinate with appropriate utility 
entities for placement of necessary utility easements and for location of all 
streets and median openings on highways or arterial roadways), existing or 
proposed, within the subdivision limits and adjacent to the subdivision; a list 
of proposed street names shall be submitted (in the form of a letter or memo 
along with the application form) for all new street names (street name 
approval is required at the time the Plat is approved) 

� � The location of all existing property lines, existing lot and block numbers and 
date recorded, easements of record (with recording information), 

� � Proposed arrangement and square footage of lots or Units (including lot and 
block numbers or Unit numbers). 

� � All sheets shall have a title block which shows the title or name under which 
the proposed subdivision is to be recorded; the name, address and phone 
number of the property owner(s); the name, address and phone number of 
the licensed engineer or registered professional land surveyor who prepared 
the plat/plans; the scale of the plat/plans; the date the plat/plan was 
prepared; and the location of the property according to the abstract or survey 
records of Hays County, Texas.  

� � Sites, if any, to be reserved or dedicated for parks, schools, playgrounds, 
other public uses or for private facilities or amenities 

� � Scale (including a graphic scale), date, north arrow oriented to the top or left 
side of the sheet, and other pertinent informational data 

� � All physical features of the property to be subdivided shall be shown, 
including: 

- The location and size of all watercourses; and 

- 100-year floodplain according to Federal Emergency Management Agency 
(FEMA) information; and 

- Water Quality Buffer Zones as required by [WQO 22.05.017] 

- Drainage ways and drainage easements.  Drainage easements are required 
for bypass of any offsite flows and for concentrated flows conveyed across 
lots.  Drainage easements shall be large enough to contain the 100-yr storm 
[Sub. Ord. 12.2.2]. 

- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers flowage easement requirements; and 

- All critical environmental features (CEFs) such as karsts, springs, sinkholes, 

45

Item 3.



 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 10 of 12 

 

caves, etc., to be located and documentation to be signed and certified by a 
geologist. All CEF to have a minimum setback of 150’. All designated wetlands 
to be certified as such by an accredited wetland biologist relying the presence 
of wetlands plant species.  

- Drainage area in acres or area draining into subdivisions (to be included in 
drainage report and construction plans); and 

 

� � Existing zoning of the subject property and all adjacent properties if within the 
city limits. 

� � Provide notes identifying the following: 
• Owner responsible for operation and maintenance of stormwater 

facilities. 

• Owner/operator of water and wastewater utilities. 

• Owner/operator of roadway facilities 

� � Certificates and other language shall be included on the plat, pursuant to the 
following Subsections: A statement signed by the property owner(s) and 
acknowledged before a Notary Public that the subdivided area is legally 
owned by the applicant. 

- A statement signed by the property owner(s) and acknowledged before a 
Notary Public that the subdivided area is legally owned by the applicant.  

- An accurate legal, such as by metes and bounds, description by bearings 
and distances (including necessary curve and line data), accurate to the 
nearest one hundredth of a foot, for all boundary, block and lot lines, with 
descriptions correlated to a permanent survey monument. 

- The registered professional land surveyor’s certificate, with a place for his 
or her signature and notarization of his or her signature. 

- A place for plat approval signature of the Chair or Vice Chair, in the Chair’s 
absence) of the Planning and Zoning Commission, a place for the City 
Secretary to attest such signature, and the approval dates by Planning and 
Zoning Commission. 

- Appendices to this Chapter contain certificates and languages to be used 
on the plat to accommodate the above requirements: 

 

 

 

 

46

Item 3.



 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 11 of 12 

 

 

 
NARRATIVE OF COMPLIANCE 

A written narrative describing how all portions of the subdivision meets all requirements of this code 
and other codes, including landscaping, lighting, parkland dedication, site development, water quality 
protection, and zoning, as may be relevant.  

Outdoor Lighting,    
Article 24.06 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Parkland Dedication, 
Article 28.03 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Landscaping and Tree 
Preservation, Article 
28.06 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Outdoor lighting will be constructed in accordance to Development Agreement and 
City standards.

Minimum parkland required is 1 acre per 25 LUEs for residential development.  
Big Sky Ranch Subdivision proposes 804 LUEs with a minimum required parkland 
of 32.2 acres. Provided public parkland is 33.8 acres, provided private parkland is 
3.5 acres, and provided private open space is 15.7 acres. See Preliminary Plat for 
Site Data Table and Parkland Summary.

Per Planned Development District No. 10 (PDD #10), a cash-in-lieu credit of  
$1,056,000 is provided for the development and the total cost of tree replacement 
exceeds the minimum total cost per acre of disturbance.

47

Item 3.



 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 12 of 12 

 

 
 

Subdivision, 28.02, 
Exhibit A 

This section shall also include, depending on what type of plat is being filed, how public or 
private improvements will meet City standards, including water quality, drainage, 
stormwater, and fire  (if applicable).  

 

 

 

 

 

 
Zoning, Article 30.02, 
Exhibit A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Public and private improvements are in conformance with the approved  
Development Agreement and Preliminary Plat. Additionally, a Contributing Zone Plan 
Application was submitted and approved by TCEQ for water quality treatment for the 
proposed development. A copy of the recorded approval letter is enclosed.

Proposed use is in conformance with approved Development Agreement and  
PDD #10.

48

Item 3.



 A
C

P.
O.

S.
11

0.
04

 A
C

C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
- P

la
nn

in
g 

- G
eo

sp
at

ia
l

74
01

 B
. H

ig
hw

ay
 7

1 
W

, S
ui

te
 1

60
A

us
tin

, T
ex

as
 7

87
35

, P
ho

ne
: (

51
2)

-5
83

-2
60

0
w

w
w

.d
ou

ce
te

ng
in

ee
rs

.c
om

TB
PE

LS
 F

irm
 N

o.
: 1

01
05

80
0

TB
PE

 F
irm

 N
o.

:F
-3

93
7

BI
G

 S
KY

 R
AN

C
H

 P
H

AS
E 

TH
R

EE
 A

T 
D

R
IP

PI
N

G
 S

PR
IN

G
S

49

Item 3.



TB
PE

LS
 F

irm
 N

o.
: 1

01
05

80
0

TB
PE

 F
irm

 N
o.

:F
-3

93
7

C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
- P

la
nn

in
g 

- G
eo

sp
at

ia
l

74
01

 B
. H

ig
hw

ay
 7

1 
W

, S
ui

te
 1

60
A

us
tin

, T
ex

as
 7

87
35

, P
ho

ne
: (

51
2)

-5
83

-2
60

0
w

w
w

.d
ou

ce
te

ng
in

ee
rs

.c
om

BI
G

 S
KY

 R
AN

C
H

 P
H

AS
E 

TH
R

EE
 A

T 
D

R
IP

PI
N

G
 S

PR
IN

G
S

50

Item 3.



TB
PE

LS
 F

irm
 N

o.
: 1

01
05

80
0

TB
PE

 F
irm

 N
o.

:F
-3

93
7

C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
- P

la
nn

in
g 

- G
eo

sp
at

ia
l

74
01

 B
. H

ig
hw

ay
 7

1 
W

, S
ui

te
 1

60
A

us
tin

, T
ex

as
 7

87
35

, P
ho

ne
: (

51
2)

-5
83

-2
60

0
w

w
w

.d
ou

ce
te

ng
in

ee
rs

.c
om

BI
G

 S
KY

 R
AN

C
H

 P
H

AS
E 

TH
R

EE
 A

T 
D

R
IP

PI
N

G
 S

PR
IN

G
S

51

Item 3.



C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
- P

la
nn

in
g 

- G
eo

sp
at

ia
l

74
01

 B
. H

ig
hw

ay
 7

1 
W

, S
ui

te
 1

60
A

us
tin

, T
ex

as
 7

87
35

, P
ho

ne
: (

51
2)

-5
83

-2
60

0
w

w
w

.d
ou

ce
te

ng
in

ee
rs

.c
om

TB
PE

LS
 F

irm
 N

o.
: 1

01
05

80
0

TB
PE

 F
irm

 N
o.

:F
-3

93
7

BI
G

 S
KY

 R
AN

C
H

 P
H

AS
E 

TH
R

EE
 A

T 
D

R
IP

PI
N

G
 S

PR
IN

G
S

52

Item 3.



C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
- P

la
nn

in
g 

- G
eo

sp
at

ia
l

74
01

 B
. H

ig
hw

ay
 7

1 
W

, S
ui

te
 1

60
A

us
tin

, T
ex

as
 7

87
35

, P
ho

ne
: (

51
2)

-5
83

-2
60

0
w

w
w

.d
ou

ce
te

ng
in

ee
rs

.c
om

TB
PE

LS
 F

irm
 N

o.
: 1

01
05

80
0

TB
PE

 F
irm

 N
o.

:F
-3

93
7

BI
G

 S
KY

 R
AN

C
H

 P
H

AS
E 

TH
R

EE
 A

T 
D

R
IP

PI
N

G
 S

PR
IN

G
S

EL
LI
O
T
JO
N
ES
,D
IV
IS
IO
N
VI
C
E
PR
ES
ID
EN
T

M
ER
IT
AG
E
H
O
M
ES

O
F
TE
XA
S,
LL
C

53

Item 3.



      

 

     

 

 

 

     

      

Date: November 5, 2021 
 

   

      

Meranda Perkins 

Doucet 
7401B Hwy. 71 W., Ste. 160 

Austin TX 78735 

mperkins@doucetengineers.com 
 

   

      

Permit Number: SUB2021-0061 

Project Name: Big Sky Ranch Phase 3 Final Plat 
Project Address: Sue Peaks Loop, Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

 

  

      

City staff has completed its review of the above-named project. Reviewer comments are provided below. These 
comments are intended to be comprehensive; however, there may be additional comments after reviewing the submitted 
corrections. Applicants are encouraged to contact reviewers directly with questions.  

 

      

City Planner Comments 

The following comments have been provided by Tory Carpenter. Should you have any questions or require additional 
information, please contact Tory Carpenter by email tcarpenter@cityofdrippingsprings.com. 

1. Provide documentation for approval of the street names. (4.7d) 

2. Remove building setback lines from the plat.  

3. The preliminary plat shows a drainage and public access easement between lots 10 & 11, block 45. Please add 
to this plat or explain the omission. (5.1) 

4. Update the city approval statement to read: "Big Skye Ranch Phase four has been approved by the Planning & Zoning 

Commission on the __ day of _______, 20__." 

 

Engineer/Public Works Comments 

The following comments have been provided by Chad Gilpin. Should you have any questions or require additional 
information, please contact Chad Gilpin by email cgilpin@cityofdrippingsprings.com. 

 
5.. Provide an overall Phasing Sheet with IC and Parkland tracking table as was provided in Phases 1 and 2. 
[Development Agreement 3.2.6] 
 
6. Sheet 1 – PPD 12 & PPD 14 should be labeled as a drainage lot or a drainage easement containing the limits 
of the 100-year storm event needs to be dedicated. 
 
7. Sheet 1 – PPD 14 should be designated as a PUE as it has a WW line running through it.  Otherwise provide a 
WW easement. 
 
8. Sheet 2 – PPD 11 should be labeled as a drainage lot or a drainage easement containing the limits of the 100-
year storm event needs to be dedicated. 
 

54

Item 3.



11/5/2021 9:37:46 AM 
Big Sky Ranch Phase 3 Final Plat 
SUB2021-0061 
Page 2 

 

 

  

9. Sheet 2 – Clearly show and identify the Gas Line easement running along the south match line. 
 
10. Sheet 2 – Clearly show and identify the WW Line easement running along the north match line. 
 
11. Sheet 2 – Use a dashed linestyle for the Creek Centerline more representative of a creek centerline. 
 
12. Sheet 2 – Label the drainage easement between Block 54, Lots 29 and 30 as shown on the construction 
plans. 
 
13. Sheet 2 – Label the WW easement between Block 54, Lots 27 and 28 as shown on the construction plans. 
 
14. Sheet 3 – Label Lone Peak Way ROW and width. 
 
15. Sheet 3- Clearly show and identify the WW Line easement running along the south match line. 
 
16. Sheet 3 – Label the Detention/Water Quality lot in the northeast corner of the tract and label the 
drainage/maintenance access easement leading to the lot. 
 
17. Sheet 3 – Label the drainage easement along the back of Block 45, lots 12 through 23 as shown on the 
construction plans. 
 
18. Sheet 3 – Label the Block number for the lots southwest of Sue Peaks Loop. Label the lot between Lot 1 and 
Lone Peak.  
 
19. Sheet 3 – Should PPD 34 be labeled as a drainage lot.  It has a storm culvert discharging into it per the 
construction plans 
 
20. Sheet 3 – The temporary 20ft access easement (Doc 21017167) should be abandoned with this plat.  If fiscal 
is posted before the public improvements are complete a note should be added stating the 20ft access easement 
will be abandoned when public improvements are accepted by the City. 
 
21. The Final Plat cannot be approved until either: 
a. Construction of Public Infrastructure is complete and accepted by the jurisdiction that will own it; OR 
b. Fiscal Surety is posted and approved by the Jurisdiction that will own the Public Infrastructure. 
 

 

      

All resubmittals must be transmitted to the Planning Department at the City of Dripping Springs or uploaded to 
www.mygovernmentonline.org**.  
 

Resubmittals must include a cover letter addressing each reviewer comment and noting where associated 
corrections/revisions/changes can be found in the submittal documents. Please keep previous review comments on 
the document as you resubmit your response letter, so that staff can keep track of the original comments. 
Resubmittals that do not include a cover letter will be considered incomplete and returned.  
 

Note regarding plats subject to Planning and Zoning Commission review: Resubmittals of corrected plats and associated 
plans must be received no later than seven (7) calendar days prior to the scheduled P&Z meeting for final review and 
inclusion in the P&Z packets [Ch. 28, Ex. A, Sec. 3.8]. 
 

Note regarding Site Development Plans: Revisions must be submitted within 60 days of the date of this letter or a new 
application will be required [Sec. 28.04.011]. 

 

      

Regards,  
 

Tory Carpenter,  
 

 

 
 

      

55

Item 3.



11/5/2021 9:37:46 AM 
Big Sky Ranch Phase 3 Final Plat 
SUB2021-0061 
Page 3 

 

 

  

 

56

Item 3.



 
 

 
Planning & Zoning Commission 

Planning Department Staff Report 

 

P&Z Meeting: November 9, 2021 

Project Number:  SUB2021-0062 

Project Planner: Tory Carpenter, Senior Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: Big Sky Phase 4 

Property Location:  Lone Peak Way and Bartlett Peak Lane 

Legal Description:  24.86 acres out of the Philip A. Smith Survey 

Applicant: Christopher Reid, P.E. – Doucet & Associates 

Property Owner: Meritage Homes of Texas, LLC 

Request: A residential final plat.   

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
57

Item 4.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

Overview 

The applicant is requesting approval of a final plat consisting of 134 residential lots.  

 

 

Action Requested 

 

Disapproval to address comments.  
 

Site Information 

 

Location:  

Lone Peak Way and Bartlett Peak Lane 

 

Zoning Designation:  PDD 10 

 

Property History  

PDD 10 was approved in October 2018 and the revised preliminary plat was approved May 2021.  

 

Recommendation 

 

Staff is recommending disapproval.  

 
Attachments 

Exhibit 1 – Plat 

Exhibit 2 - Application 

 

Recommended Action: Disapproval.  

Budget/Financial Impact:    All fees have been paid.  

Public Comments: None Received at this time. 

Enforcement Issues: N/A 

 

58

Item 4.



City of Dripping Springs 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 

Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com 

Revised 10.2.2019 Page 1 of 12 

SUBDIVISION APPLICATION 

CONTACT INFORMATION 

  Case Number (staff use only): ________-____ 

MEETINGS REQUIRED  
(AS APPLICABLE PER SITE DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE) 

INFORMAL 
CONSULTATION 

PRE-APPLICATION 
CONFERENCE 

DATE: 
______________       
☐ NOT
SCHEDULED 

DATE: 
______________       
☐ NOT SCHEDULED

APPLICANT NAME____________________________________________________________________________________ 
COMPANY __________________________________________________________________________________________ 
STREET ADDRESS_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
CITY_______________________________STATE_________________________ ZIP CODE __________________________ 
PHONE________________________ EMAIL_______________________________________________________________ 

OWNER NAME____________________________________________________________________________________ 
COMPANY __________________________________________________________________________________________ 
STREET ADDRESS_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
CITY_______________________________STATE_________________________ ZIP CODE __________________________ 
PHONE________________________ EMAIL_______________________________________________________________ 

PLAT TYPE 

� Amending Plat 

� Minor Plat 

� Replat 

� Final Plat 

� Plat Vacation 

� Other:_______________ 

Christopher Reid, PE
Doucet 

7401B Hwy. 71 W., Ste. 160
Austin Texas 78735

(512)583-2600 creid@doucetengineers.com

Meritage Homes of Texas, LLC
8920 Business Park Drive, Suite 350

Austin Texas 78759

(512) 610-4853

Elliot Jones

elliot.jones@meritagehomes.com

9/28/21

59

Item 4.



 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 2 of 12 

 

 

PROPERTY INFORMATION 
PROPERTY OWNER NAME  

PROPERTY ADDRESS  

CURRENT LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION  

 

TAX ID #  

LOCATED IN  � City Limits 

� Extraterritorial Jurisdiction 

CURRENT LAND ACREAGE  

SCHOOL DISTRICT  

ESD DISTRICT(S)   

ZONING/PDD/OVERLAY  

EXISTING ROAD FRONTAGE � Private                                Name: _____________________ 

� State                                    Name: _____________________  

� City/County (public)          Name: _____________________ 

DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT?  

(If so, please attach 
agreement) 

� Yes (see attached)  

� Not Applicable  

Development Agreement Name: _____________________________ 

 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION 

IS PROPERTY OVER THE EDWARDS AQUIFER RECHARGE ZONE? � YES    � NO 

IS PROPERTY OVER THE BARTON SPRINGS CONTRIBUTING ZONE TO THE 
EDWARDS AQUIFER? 

� YES    � NO 

IS PROPERTY WITHIN A FEMA FLOODPLAIN AS DEFINED BY THE MOST CURRENT 
FIRM?  

� YES    � NO 

 

 

 

 

Meritage Homes of Texas, LLC

n/a

ABS 415 Philip A Smith Survey

R18077

PDD 10

Scott Ranch

Bartlett Peak Lane

Dripping Springs Independent School District

ESD 6

212.4

60

Item 4.



 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 3 of 12 

 

 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

PROPOSED SUBDIVISION 
NAME 

 

TOTAL ACREAGE OF 
DEVELOPMENT 

 

TOTAL NUMBER OF LOTS  

AVERAGE SIZE OF LOTS  

INTENDED USE OF LOTS � RESIDENTIAL     � COMMERCIAL    � INDUSTRIAL/OTHER:________________ 

# OF LOTS PER USE RESIDENTIAL: _______________ 

COMMERCIAL: ______________ 

INDUSTRIAL:________________ 

 

ACREAGE PER USE RESIDENTIAL: _______________ 

COMMERCIAL: ______________ 

INDUSTRIAL:________________ 

 

LINEAR FEET (ADDED) OF 
PROPOSED ROADS 

PUBLIC:________________ 

PRIVATE:_______________ 

ANTICIPATED 
WASTEWATER SYSTEM 

� CONVENTIONAL SEPTIC SYSTEM 

� CLASS I (AEROBIC) PERMITTED SYSTEM 

� PUBLIC SEWER                

WATER SOURCES SURFACE WATER 

� PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY 

� RAIN WATER 

GROUND WATER* 

� PUBLIC WELL 

� SHARED WELL 

� PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY                

*IF DOING GROUND WATER PROVISION FOR THE DEVELOPMENT USING GROUNDWATER RESOURCES, 
THE HAYS-TRINITY GROUNDWATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT MUST BE NOTIFIED:  

HAYS-TRINITY GCD NOTIFIED?       � YES    � NO 

Big Sky Ranch Phase 4 at Dripping Springs

24.86 acres

22.91

Not applicable

136

5,236 SF

3,994 LF

134

61

Item 4.



 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 4 of 12 

 

 

COMMENTS: ________________________________________ 

 

TITLE: ______________________ SIGNATURE: _________________________________ 

 

 

PUBLIC UTILITY CHECKLIST 

 

ELECTRIC PROVIDER NAME (if applicable): _______________________________________________ 

� VERIFICATION LETTER ATTACHED    � NOT APPLICABLE  

 

COMMUNICATIONS PROVIDER NAME (if applicable): ______________________________________ 

� VERIFICATION LETTER ATTACHED    � NOT APPLICABLE  

 

WATER PROVIDER NAME (if applicable): _________________________________________________ 

� VERIFICATION LETTER ATTACHED    � NOT APPLICABLE  

 

WASTEWATER PROVIDER NAME (if applicable): ___________________________________________ 

� VERIFICATION LETTER ATTACHED    � NOT APPLICABLE  

 

GAS PROVIDER NAME (if applicable): ____________________________________________________ 

� VERIFICATION LETTER ATTACHED    � NOT APPLICABLE  

 

 

 

 

PARKLAND DEDICATION? AGRICULTURE FACILITIES (FINAL PLAT)? 

� YES    � NOT APPLICABLE � YES    � NOT APPLICABLE 

 

 

 

Senior Project Manager

Pedernales Electric Cooperative (PEC)

Charter Communications dba Spectrum

Dripping Springs Water Supply Corporation

City of Dripping Springs

Texas Gas Service

10/1/21

62

Item 4.



 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 5 of 12 

 

 

COMPLIANCE WITH OUTDOOR LIGHTING ORDINANCE?* 

 

(See attached agreement) 

 

*If proposed subdivision is in the City Limits, compliance with the Lighting Ordinance is mandatory. If 
proposed subdivision is in the ETJ, compliance is mandatory when required by a Development 
Agreement, or as a condition of an Alternative Standard/Special Exception/Variance/Waiver.  

 

Voluntary compliance is strongly encouraged by those not required by above criteria (see Outdoor 
Lighting tab on the city’s website at www.cityofdrippingsprings.com and online Lighting Ordinance 
under the Code of Ordinances tab for more information).  

 

� YES (REQUIRED)    � YES (VOLUNTARY*)   � NO  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

63

Item 4.



10/01/2021

10/1/21

64

Item 4.



 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 7 of 12 

 

All required items and information (including all applicable below listed exhibits and fees) must be 
received by the City for an application and request to be considered complete. Incomplete submissions 
will not be deemed filed and complete. By signing below, I acknowledge that I have read through and 
met all requirements for a complete submittal:  

 

Applicants Signature: _________________________________   Date: _________________________________ 

  

                                                         

FINAL, REPLAT, MINOR, AND AMENDING PLAT CHECKLIST  

Subdivision Ordinance, Section 5 
STAFF APPLICANT  

� � Completed application form – including all required notarized signatures  

� � Application fee (refer to Fee Schedule) 

� � Digital Copies/PDF of all submitted items  

� � County Application Submittal – proof of online submission (if applicable)  

� � ESD #6 Application (if within City or Development Agreement) or  

Proof of Submittal to Hays County Fire Marshal (if in the ETJ) 

� � $240 Fee for ESD #6 Application (if applicable)  

� � Billing Contact Form 

� � Engineer’s Summary Report 

� � Drainage Report – if not included in the Engineer’s summary 

� � Geological Assessment Identifying Critical Environmental Features [Sub. Ord. 
4.8(I)(4)] (if applicable) 

� � OSSF Facility Planning Report or approved OSSF permit (if applicable) 

� � Final Plats (11 x 17 to scale)   

� � Copy of Current Configuration of Plat (if applicable)  

� � Copy of Preliminary Plat (if applicable)  

� � Proof of final acceptance of all public infrastructure by the jurisdiction that will own 
and maintain it; or posting of fiscal for public infrastructure.  

� � Digital Data (GIS) of Subdivision 

� � Tax Certificates – verifying that property taxes are current 

� � Copy of Notice Letter to the School District – notifying of preliminary submittal 

� � Outdoor Lighting Ordinance Compliance Agreement 

N/A

N/A

N/A

10/1/21

65

Item 4.

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight



 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 8 of 12 

 

� � Development Agreement/PDD (If applicable) 

� � Cost estimate of public infrastructure improvements (all public infrastructure 
improvements including water, wastewater, roads, drainage, curbs, sidewalks, etc.) 
(if applicable).  

*A Final Plat application will not be accepted if staff has not already approved this. 

� � Documentation showing approval of driveway locations (TxDOT, County)  

� � Documentation showing Hays County 911 Addressing approval (If applicable) 

� � Parkland Dedication fee (if applicable)  

� � $25 Public Notice Sign Fee 

� � Ag Facility Fees - $35 per residential LUE (if applicable) 

� � Proof of Utility Service (Water & Wastewater) or permit to serve 

� � Geologic Assessment Identifying Critical Environmental Features [Sub. Ord. 4.8(I)(4)] 

� � Pre-Application Meeting Form signed by City Staff 

 

FINAL PLAT INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS 

� � A vicinity, or location, map that shows the location of the proposed Plat within 
the City (or within its ETJ) and in relationship to existing roadways. 

� � Boundary lines, abstract/survey lines, corporate and other jurisdictional 
boundaries, existing or proposed highways and street right-of-way, bearings 
and distances sufficient to locate the exact area proposed for the subdivision, 
and all survey monuments including any required concrete monuments (per 
the City Engineer); the length and bearing of all straight lines, radii, arc lengths, 
tangent lengths and central angles of all curves shall be indicated along the 
lines of each lot or Unit (curve and line data may be placed in a table format); 
accurate reference ties via courses and distances to at least one recognized 
abstract or survey corner or existing subdivision corner shall be shown. 

� � The name, location and recording information of all adjacent subdivisions (or 
property owners of adjacent unplatted property), including those located on 
the other sides of roads or creeks, shall be drawn to the same scale and shown 
in dotted lines adjacent to the tract proposed for subdivision in sufficient 
detail to show accurately the existing streets, alleys, building setbacks, lot and 
block numbering, easements, and other features that may influence the 
layout of development of the proposed subdivision; adjacent unplatted land 
shall show property lines, the names of owners of record, and the recording 
information. 

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Meeting held 9/28/21, no form 
provided afterwards.

66

Item 4.

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight



 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 9 of 12 

 

� � The location, widths and names of all street right-of-way and easements (it 
shall be the applicant’s responsibility to coordinate with appropriate utility 
entities for placement of necessary utility easements and for location of all 
streets and median openings on highways or arterial roadways), existing or 
proposed, within the subdivision limits and adjacent to the subdivision; a list 
of proposed street names shall be submitted (in the form of a letter or memo 
along with the application form) for all new street names (street name 
approval is required at the time the Plat is approved) 

� � The location of all existing property lines, existing lot and block numbers and 
date recorded, easements of record (with recording information), 

� � Proposed arrangement and square footage of lots or Units (including lot and 
block numbers or Unit numbers). 

� � All sheets shall have a title block which shows the title or name under which 
the proposed subdivision is to be recorded; the name, address and phone 
number of the property owner(s); the name, address and phone number of 
the licensed engineer or registered professional land surveyor who prepared 
the plat/plans; the scale of the plat/plans; the date the plat/plan was 
prepared; and the location of the property according to the abstract or survey 
records of Hays County, Texas.  

� � Sites, if any, to be reserved or dedicated for parks, schools, playgrounds, 
other public uses or for private facilities or amenities 

� � Scale (including a graphic scale), date, north arrow oriented to the top or left 
side of the sheet, and other pertinent informational data 

� � All physical features of the property to be subdivided shall be shown, 
including: 

- The location and size of all watercourses; and 

- 100-year floodplain according to Federal Emergency Management Agency 
(FEMA) information; and 

- Water Quality Buffer Zones as required by [WQO 22.05.017] 

- Drainage ways and drainage easements.  Drainage easements are required 
for bypass of any offsite flows and for concentrated flows conveyed across 
lots.  Drainage easements shall be large enough to contain the 100-yr storm 
[Sub. Ord. 12.2.2]. 

- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers flowage easement requirements; and 

- All critical environmental features (CEFs) such as karsts, springs, sinkholes, 

67

Item 4.



 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 10 of 12 

 

caves, etc., to be located and documentation to be signed and certified by a 
geologist. All CEF to have a minimum setback of 150’. All designated wetlands 
to be certified as such by an accredited wetland biologist relying the presence 
of wetlands plant species.  

- Drainage area in acres or area draining into subdivisions (to be included in 
drainage report and construction plans); and 

 

� � Existing zoning of the subject property and all adjacent properties if within the 
city limits. 

� � Provide notes identifying the following: 
• Owner responsible for operation and maintenance of stormwater 

facilities. 

• Owner/operator of water and wastewater utilities. 

• Owner/operator of roadway facilities 

� � Certificates and other language shall be included on the plat, pursuant to the 
following Subsections: A statement signed by the property owner(s) and 
acknowledged before a Notary Public that the subdivided area is legally 
owned by the applicant. 

- A statement signed by the property owner(s) and acknowledged before a 
Notary Public that the subdivided area is legally owned by the applicant.  

- An accurate legal, such as by metes and bounds, description by bearings 
and distances (including necessary curve and line data), accurate to the 
nearest one hundredth of a foot, for all boundary, block and lot lines, with 
descriptions correlated to a permanent survey monument. 

- The registered professional land surveyor’s certificate, with a place for his 
or her signature and notarization of his or her signature. 

- A place for plat approval signature of the Chair or Vice Chair, in the Chair’s 
absence) of the Planning and Zoning Commission, a place for the City 
Secretary to attest such signature, and the approval dates by Planning and 
Zoning Commission. 

- Appendices to this Chapter contain certificates and languages to be used 
on the plat to accommodate the above requirements: 

 

 

 

 

68

Item 4.



 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 11 of 12 

 

 

 
NARRATIVE OF COMPLIANCE 

A written narrative describing how all portions of the subdivision meets all requirements of this code 
and other codes, including landscaping, lighting, parkland dedication, site development, water quality 
protection, and zoning, as may be relevant.  

Outdoor Lighting,    
Article 24.06 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Parkland Dedication, 
Article 28.03 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Landscaping and Tree 
Preservation, Article 
28.06 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Outdoor lighting will be constructed in accordance to Development Agreement and 
City standards.

Minimum parkland required is 1 acre per 25 LUEs for residential development.  
Big Sky Ranch Subdivision proposes 804 LUEs with a minimum required parkland 
of 32.2 acres. Provided public parkland is 33.8 acres, provided private parkland is 
3.5 acres, and provided private open space is 15.7 acres. See Preliminary Plat for 
Site Data Table and Parkland Summary.

Per Planned Development District No. 10 (PDD #10), a cash-in-lieu credit of  
$1,056,000 is provided for the development and the total cost of tree replacement 
exceeds the minimum total cost per acre of disturbance.

69

Item 4.



 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 12 of 12 

 

 
 

Subdivision, 28.02, 
Exhibit A 

This section shall also include, depending on what type of plat is being filed, how public or 
private improvements will meet City standards, including water quality, drainage, 
stormwater, and fire  (if applicable).  

 

 

 

 

 

 
Zoning, Article 30.02, 
Exhibit A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Public and private improvements are in conformance with the approved  
Development Agreement and Preliminary Plat. Additionally, a Contributing Zone Plan 
Application was submitted and approved by TCEQ for water quality treatment for the 
proposed development. A copy of the recorded approval letter is enclosed.

Proposed use is in conformance with approved Development Agreement and  
PDD #10.

70

Item 4.



 A
C

P.
P.

D.
11

0.
25

 A
C

C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
- P

la
nn

in
g 

- G
eo

sp
at

ia
l

74
01

 B
. H

ig
hw

ay
 7

1 
W

, S
ui

te
 1

60
A

us
tin

, T
ex

as
 7

87
35

, P
ho

ne
: (

51
2)

-5
83

-2
60

0
w

w
w

.d
ou

ce
te

ng
in

ee
rs

.c
om

TB
PE

LS
 F

irm
 N

o.
: 1

01
05

80
0

TB
PE

 F
irm

 N
o.

:F
-3

93
7

BI
G

 S
KY

 R
AN

C
H

 P
H

AS
E 

FO
U

R
 A

T 
D

R
IP

PI
N

G
 S

PR
IN

G
S

71

Item 4.



TB
PE

LS
 F

irm
 N

o.
: 1

01
05

80
0

TB
PE

 F
irm

 N
o.

:F
-3

93
7

C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
- P

la
nn

in
g 

- G
eo

sp
at

ia
l

74
01

 B
. H

ig
hw

ay
 7

1 
W

, S
ui

te
 1

60
A

us
tin

, T
ex

as
 7

87
35

, P
ho

ne
: (

51
2)

-5
83

-2
60

0
w

w
w

.d
ou

ce
te

ng
in

ee
rs

.c
om

BI
G

 S
KY

 R
AN

C
H

 P
H

AS
E 

FO
U

R
 A

T 
D

R
IP

PI
N

G
 S

PR
IN

G
S

72

Item 4.



TB
PE

LS
 F

irm
 N

o.
: 1

01
05

80
0

TB
PE

 F
irm

 N
o.

:F
-3

93
7

C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
- P

la
nn

in
g 

- G
eo

sp
at

ia
l

74
01

 B
. H

ig
hw

ay
 7

1 
W

, S
ui

te
 1

60
A

us
tin

, T
ex

as
 7

87
35

, P
ho

ne
: (

51
2)

-5
83

-2
60

0
w

w
w

.d
ou

ce
te

ng
in

ee
rs

.c
om

BI
G

 S
KY

 R
AN

C
H

 P
H

AS
E 

FO
U

R
 A

T 
D

R
IP

PI
N

G
 S

PR
IN

G
S

73

Item 4.



TB
PE

LS
 F

irm
 N

o.
: 1

01
05

80
0

TB
PE

 F
irm

 N
o.

:F
-3

93
7

C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
- P

la
nn

in
g 

- G
eo

sp
at

ia
l

74
01

 B
. H

ig
hw

ay
 7

1 
W

, S
ui

te
 1

60
A

us
tin

, T
ex

as
 7

87
35

, P
ho

ne
: (

51
2)

-5
83

-2
60

0
w

w
w

.d
ou

ce
te

ng
in

ee
rs

.c
om

BI
G

 S
KY

 R
AN

C
H

 P
H

AS
E 

FO
U

R
 A

T 
D

R
IP

PI
N

G
 S

PR
IN

G
S

EL
LI
O
T
JO
N
ES
,D
IV
IS
IO
N
VI
C
E
PR
ES
ID
EN
T

M
ER
IT
AG
E
H
O
M
ES

O
F
TE
XA
S,
LL
C

74

Item 4.



      

 

     

 

 

 

     

      

Date: November 5, 2021 
 

   

      

Meranda Perkins 

Doucet 
7401B Hwy. 71 W., Ste. 160 

Austin TX 78735 

mperkins@doucetengineers.com 
 

   

      

Permit Number: SUB2021-0062 

Project Name: Big Sky Ranch Phase 4 Final Plat 
Project Address: Bartlett Peak Lane, Dripping Springs, TX 
78620 

 

  

      

City staff has completed its review of the above-named project. Reviewer comments are provided below. These 
comments are intended to be comprehensive; howerver, there may be additional comments after reviewing the submitted 
corrections. Applicants are encouraged to contact reviewers directly with questions.  

 

      

City Planner Comments 

The following comments have been provided by Tory Carpenter. Should you have any questions or require additional 
information, please contact Tory Carpenter by email tcarpenter@cityofdrippingsprings.com. 

  1. Update the city approval statement to read: "Big Skye Ranch Phase four has been approved by the Planning & 
Zoning Commission on the __ day of _______, 20__." 

  2. Provide documentation for approval of the street names. (4.7d) 

    

  3. Remove building setback lines from the plat. 

    

Engineer/Public Works Comments 

The following comments have been provided by Chad Gilpin. Should you have any questions or require additional 
information, please contact Chad Gilpin by email cgilpin@cityofdrippingsprings.com. 

  4. Provide an overall Phasing Sheet with IC and Parkland tracking table as was provided in Phases 1 and 2. 
[Development Agreement 3.2.6] 
 
5. Sheet 1 & 2 – POS 38 should be labeled as a drainage lot or a drainage easement containing the limits of the 
100-year storm event needs to be dedicated. 
 
6. Sheet 1 & 2 – Clearly show and identify the full width of the Davis Mountain ROW running along the match 
line. 
 
7. The Final Plat cannot be approved until either: 
a. Construction of Public Infrastructure is complete and accepted by the jurisdiction that will own it; OR 

75

Item 4.



11/5/2021 11:29:13 AM 
Big Sky Ranch Phase 4 Final Plat 
SUB2021-0062 
Page 2 

 

 

  

b. Fiscal Surety is posted and approved by the Jurisdiction that will own the Public Infrastructure. 
 

 

      

All resubmittals must be transmitted to the Planning Department at the City of Dripping Springs or uploaded to 
www.mygovernmentonline.org**.  
 

Resubmittals must include a cover letter addressing each reviewer comment and noting where associated 
corrections/revisions/changes can be found in the submittal documents. Please keep previous review comments on 
the document as you resubmit your response letter, so that staff can keep track of the original comments. 
Resubmittals that do not include a cover letter will be considered incomplete and returned.  
 

Note regarding plats subject to Planning and Zoning Commission review: Resubmittals of corrected plats and associated 
plans must be received no later than seven (7) calendar days prior to the scheduled P&Z meeting for final review and 
inclusion in the P&Z packets [Ch. 28, Ex. A, Sec. 3.8]. 
 

Note regarding Site Development Plans: Revisions must be submitted within 60 days of the date of this letter or a new 
application will be required [Sec. 28.04.011]. 

 

      

Regards,  
 

Tory Carpenter,  
 

 

****If you are wanting to resubmit on My Government Online, go to www.mygovernmentonline.org and login using 
your customer portal account.  After login, click the My Account link located at the top right section of the screen to 
open the My Account Dashboard.  Scroll down to the "My Permits" section and locate the project.  Click "View Permit" 
to open the project.  Scroll down to the section of your project labeled "Customer Documents."  Click the "Add New 
File" link located to the far right to upload your files.  The jurisdiction will be notified automatically after you've 
uploaded the files.  If you are new to the MyGovernmentOnline customer portal, please note that instructions are 
available on the portal by clicking the "HELP" link or you may call the technical support line at 1-866-957-3764, option 1 
for assistance using the online portal. 

 

      

 

76

Item 4.



 
 

 
Planning & Zoning Commission 

Planning Department Staff Report 

 

P&Z Meeting: November 9, 2021 

Project Number:  SUB2020-0040 

Project Planner: Tory Carpenter, Senior Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: Esperanza Phase 2 Final Plat 

Property Location:  4900 Bell Springs Road 

Legal Description:  52.44 acres out of the Indian Point Subdivision 

Applicant: Adrian Rosas, TRE & Associates   

Property Owner: Esperanza 104, LLC 

Request: A residential final plat.   

 

 
 

 

 

77

Item 5.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 

 

Overview 

The applicant is requesting approval of a final plat consisting of 57 residential lots.  

 

 

Action Requested 

 

Conditional approval.  
 

Site Information 

 

Location:  

4900 Bell Springs Road 

 

Zoning Designation:  SF-2 

 

Property History  

The Esperanza Phase 2 final plat was originally approved in April 2021. This updated final plat reflects changes to the 

construction plans which eliminated the access to Yellow Bell Run from Bell Springs Road.  

 

Recommendation 

 

Staff is recommending approval with the following condition: 

 

1. Construction final punch list items are addressed, and Public Infrastructure is accepted by the Jurisdiction that will 

owns it.  

 
Attachments 

Exhibit 1 – Plat 

Exhibit 2 - Application 

 

Recommended Action: Approval with the following condition: 

 

1.  Construction final punch list items are addressed, and Public Infrastructure is 

accepted by the Jurisdiction that will owns it.  

 

Budget/Financial Impact:    All fees have been paid.  

Public Comments: None Received at this time. 

Enforcement Issues: N/A 

 

78

Item 5.



Received on/by: 
 _________________ 

Date, initials 

Version 14.2 512-858-4725   511 Mercer St. / PO Box 384 Dripping Springs, TX 78620 Page 1of 7

APPLICATION FOR A 

SUBDIVISION 

Proposed Name of Subdivision:____________________________________________________ 

Name of Applicant:______________________________________________________________ 

Name of Property Owner: ________________________________________________________ 

Contact Address: _______________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Telephone # :___________________________________________________________________ 

Contact Email Address:__________________________________________________________ 

Person to Appear at P&Z / City Council (if required):___________________________________ 

Property Address/Location:_______________________________________________________ 

Current Legal Description:________________________________________________________ 

Current Land Area:______________________________________________________________ 

Name of Surveyor / Engineer / Architect:____________________________________________ 

Name of Company:________________________________________________________ 

Address:________________________________________________________________ 

Telephone:_______________________________________________________________ 

Email:__________________________________________________________________ 

Type of Plat: 
   Minor Plat    Major Plat 
   Amended Plat    Plat Vacation 
   Replat 

Esperanza Subdivision, Phase Two
Adrian Rosas, PE

Esperanza 104, LLC
6101 W. Courtyard Drive, Bldg. 1, Ste. 100

512-358-4049
arosas@tr-eng.com

Adrian Rosas
4900 Bell Springs Road
Lot 2A, Resub of Lot 1 & 2 Indian Point Estates

107.76 Acres (Total); 52.4 Acres- Phase 2
Travis Tabor, RPLS

Land Design Services, Inc. 
10090 W. Highway 29, Liberty Hill, TX 78642
512-238-7901

ttabor@lsisurvey.com

79

Item 5.



Version 14.2 512-858-4725   511 Mercer St. / PO Box 384 Dripping Springs, TX 78620 Page 2 of 7

IS THE PROPOSED SUBDIVISION IN THE CITY LIMITS OR EXTRA TERRIRORIAL 
JURISDICTION? 

   City Limits    ETJ 

If proposed subdivision is in the City Limits, compliance with Lighting Ordinance is mandatory.  
If proposed subdivision is in the ETJ, compliance is mandatory when required by a Development 
Agreement or as a condition of an Alternative Standard/Special Exception/Variance/Waiver.  

Voluntary compliance is strongly encouraged by those not required by above criteria (see Outdoor 
Lighting tab on the CODS webpage and online Lighting Ordinance under Code of Ordinances tab for 
more information).   

COMPLIANCE WITH LIGHTING ORDINANCE: 
 Yes (Required)   Yes (Voluntary)    No 

Total Acreage of Development:_________________ Total Acreage of Lots:________________ 

Intended Use of Lots:____________________________________________________________ 

# of Residential:_____________________ # of Commercial/Industrial:____________________ 

Total Number of Lots:_____________ Average Size of Lots:____________________________ 

PARKLAND DEDICATION: 

□ Acreage: ______________ □ Proposed Cash in Lieu: _______________

□ Ag Fee: ______________________

Frontage on Existing Road: 

City/County (Public) Road: _________________________________________________ 

State Road: ______________________________________________________________ 

Private Road: ____________________________________________________________ 

New Roads in Development (linear feet per individual street; number of streets, category) 
(A list of proposed names for streets must be submitted at time of Preliminary) 

Public Roads:____________________________________________________________ 

Private Roads:____________________________________________________________ 

IS PROPERTY WITHIN A FEMA FLOODPLAIN AS DEFINED BY THE MOST CURRENT 
FIRM? 

Yes No    

52.4 52.4
Single Family

56 0
58 3/4 acre

9.82 ( Phase 1)

Bell Springs Road

See Plan Set

80

Item 5.



Version 14.2 512-858-4725   511 Mercer St. / PO Box 384 Dripping Springs, TX 78620 Page 3 of 7

IS PROPERTY OVER THE EDWARDS AQUIFER RECHARGE ZONE? 
Yes    No    

IS PROPERTY OVER THE BARTON SPRINGS CONTRIBUTING ZONE TO THE 
EDWARDS AQUIFER? 

Yes   No    

SCHOOL DISTRICT:__________________________________________________________ 

SOURCE OF WATER 
Surface Water Ground Water 

   Public Water Supply    Private Well 
   Rainwater    Shared Well 

   Public Water Supply 

ANTICIPATED WASTEWATER SYSTEM: 
   Conventional Septic System 
   Class I (Aerobic) Permitted System 
   Public Sewer 

PUBLIC UTILITY CHECKLIST 
(Fill out below or attach letters from the listed utility providers verifying their easements from the below utility providers) 

ELECTRIC UTILITY: 
Company Name: 
Approved As-Is:____________________ Easement Required: ___________________ 
Define Required Easement: 
Signature: _____________________________________ Title:___________________ 

TELEPHONE UTILITY 
Company Name: 
Approved As-Is: :____________________ Easement Required: ___________________ 
Define Required Easement: 
Signature:______________________________________Title:___________________ 

WATER UTILITY (If Applicable) 
Company Name: 
Approved As-Is: :____________________ Easement Required: ___________________ 
Define Required Easement: 
Signature:______________________________________Title:____________________ 

If doing water provision for the development using groundwater resources, the Hays-Trinity 
Groundwater Conservation District must be notified: 

HAYS-TRINITY GCD: 
Notified: Yes   No    
Comments: 
Signature:__________________________Title:_______________________ 

SEWER UTILITY (If Applicable) 
Company Name: 



Frontier Communities

PEC

Dripping Springs Water Supply Corporation

Dripping Springs ISD

81

Item 5.



Version 14.2 512-858-4725   511 Mercer St. / PO Box 384 Dripping Springs, TX 78620 Page 4 of 7

Approved As-Is:____________________ Easement Required: ___________________ 
Define Required Easement: 
Signature:______________________________________Title:____________________ 

HAYS COUNTY ROAD & BRIDGE DEPARTMENT 
Approved Proposed Location for Driveway:  Yes No    
Required ROW Dedication:   Yes No    

Define Required ROW (if required): 
Utilities to be placed in ROW:  Yes No    
Signature: __________________ Title: __________________________ 

TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Approved Proposed Location for Driveway:  Yes No    
Required ROW Dedication:  Yes No    

Define Required ROW (if required): 
Utilities to be placed in ROW: Yes No    
Signature: __________________ Title: __________________________ 

WAIVERS TO BE REQUESTED: 
(To be accompanied by letter from Owner making request) 
Define briefly the waiver to be requested: (Subdivision Ordinance, Vol. 2, Art. 15, Ch. 20, Subchapter A, Sec. 1.6) 

________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT: 
Yes   No    
Define Development Agreement briefly: _______________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

ZONING OF PROPERTY 
Current Zoning: __________________________________________________________ 
Zoning Change to be requested: 

Yes   No    
Define proposed zoning change briefly: _________________________________ 
(To be accompanied by Application for Zoning Amendment) 

Fiscal Security Requirements (if required):___________________________________________ 

SF-2

■

82

Item 5.



83

Item 5.



Version 14.2 512-858-4725   511 Mercer St. / PO Box 384 Dripping Springs, TX 78620 Page 6 of 7 

 PDF/Digital Copies of: 
 Preliminary Plats 
 Engineer’s Summary Report 
When submitting digital files, a coversheet must be included outlining what 
digital contents are included 

 Billing Contact Form 
 ESD#6 Application  
 Preliminary Plats (3 copies required) 
 Development Agreement (if applicable) 
 Facility Planning Report (if applicable and if not being served by a public wastewater 

system) 
 Tax certificates/receipts (verifying that property taxes are current) 
 Preliminary Drainage Study 
 List of Property Owners within 300’ 
 Engineer’s Summary Report (3 copies) 
 Water Supply Letter (WTCPUA/City of DS/DS WSC/MUD/WCID) 
 Water Availability Study (reviewed and approved by the County or its agent, possibly 

the Hays-Trinity Groundwater District) 
 Utility Service Provider letters (PEC, AT&T or Verizon, Time Warner – 

cable/telephone; gas service, if applicable; wastewater – if in a MUD or WCID, or in 
the City’s service area; if new MUD, WCID, or private wastewater service planned, 
than a letter of intent from developer stating this will be satisfactory.) 

 TXDOT Permit or Permit Application (showing either approval, or as submitted) 
 Copy of a Notice Letter to the School District (notifying of preliminary submittal) 
 Lighting Ordinance Compliance Agreement – signed with attached photos/drawings 

(required if marked “Yes (Required)” on above Lighting Ordinance Section of 
application) 

FINAL 
Section 5.2, Subdivision Ordinance 

Application Submittal for Review 
 Completed Application Form (including all required signatures) 
 Engineer’s Summary (2 copies) 
 Application Fee (refer to Fee Schedule) $________________ 
 Billing Contact Form 
 Final Plats (3 copies – 24”x36”) 
 Coversheet listing the contents of digital submittal (with attached CD or USB see 

below) 
 PDF and/or digital copies of: 

 Subdivision Plat 
 Construction Plans 
 Engineer’s Summary Report 
 Final Plat 
 Construction Drawings 
 Projected Digital (GIS) data of Subdivision 
 When submitting digital files, a coversheet must be included outlining what 

digital contents are included 
 Construction Drawings (1 reduced – half-size; 3 full-size) (as applicable)  
 “Letter of Satisfactory Completion” (of public improvements) – only if the 

improvements are built without fiscal surety for the construction before the approval 
of the final plat. 

25,450.00

84

Item 5.



85

Item 5.



86

Item 5.



87

Item 5.



88

Item 5.



89

Item 5.



 
 

 
Planning & Zoning Commission 

Planning Department Staff Report 

 

P&Z Meeting: November 9, 2021 

Project Number:  SUB2021-0046 

Project Planner: Tory Carpenter, Senior Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: Driftwood Golf and Ranch Club Phase 3 

Property Location:  Driftwood Ranch Drive 

Legal Description:  56.33 acres out of the Freelove Woody Survey. 

Applicant: Adrian Rosas, TRE & Associates   

Property Owner: Esperanza 104, LLC 

Request: A residential final plat.   

 

 
 

 

 

90

Item 6.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 

 

Overview 

The applicant is requesting approval of a final plat consisting of 30 residential lots.  

 

 

Action Requested 

 

Conditional approval.  
 

Site Information 

 

Location:  

Driftwood Ranch Drive 

 

Zoning Designation:  ETJ (Driftwood Development Agreement) 

 

Property History  

This plat was disapproved by the Planning & Zoning Commission on September 14, 2021 to address comments.  

 

Recommendation 

 

Staff is recommending approval with the following conditions: 

 

1. Fill in the document number for the Driftwood Minor Plat. 

2. Record the easement documents for the Temporary Fire Turn Around easement shown and fill in recording 

number. 

3. The Final Plat cannot be approved until either; construction of Public Infrastructure must be complete and 

accepted by the Jurisdiction that will own it; OR Fiscal Surety is posted and approved by the Jurisdiction that will 

own the Public Infrastructure. 

 
Attachments 

Exhibit 1 – Plat 

Exhibit 2 - Application 

 

Recommended Action: Approval with the following condition: 

 

Staff is recommending approval with the following conditions: 

 

1. Fill in the document number for the Driftwood Minor Plat. 

2. Record the easement documents for the Temporary Fire Turn Around easement 

shown and fill in recording number. 

3. The Final Plat cannot be approved until either; construction of Public 

Infrastructure must be complete and accepted by the Jurisdiction that will own it; 

OR Fiscal Surety is posted and approved by the Jurisdiction that will own the 

Public Infrastructure. 

 

Budget/Financial Impact:    All fees have been paid.  

Public Comments: None Received at this time. 

Enforcement Issues: N/A 

 
91

Item 6.



92

Item 6.



93

Item 6.



94

Item 6.



95

Item 6.



96

Item 6.



97

Item 6.



98

Item 6.



99

Item 6.



100

Item 6.



101

Item 6.



102

Item 6.



103

Item 6.



104

Item 6.



105

Item 6.



106

Item 6.



107

Item 6.



108

Item 6.



109

Item 6.



 
 

 
Planning & Zoning Commission 

Planning Department Staff Report 

 

P&Z Meeting: November 9, 2021 

Project Number:  SUB2021-0064 

Project Planner: Tory Carpenter, Senior Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: Caliterra Phase 4 Section 11 

Property Location:  Soaring Hill Road and Fish Trap Road 

Legal Description:  39.911 acres out of the Philip A. Smith Survey 

Applicant: Bill E. Couch – Carlson Brigance and Doering, Inc. 

Property Owner: Development Solutions CAT, LLC 

Request: A residential final plat.   

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
110

Item 7.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

Overview 

The applicant is requesting approval of a final plat consisting of 103 residential lots.  

 

 

Action Requested 

 

Disapproval to address comments.  
 

Site Information 

 

Location:  

Lone Peak Way and Bartlett Peak Lane 

 

Zoning Designation:  ETJ (Caliterra Development Agreement) 

 

Property History  

This plat was denied by the Planning &Zoning Commission in September 2020 to address comments.  

 

Recommendation 

 

Staff is recommending disapproval.  

 
Attachments 

Exhibit 1 – Plat 

Exhibit 2 - Application 

 

Recommended Action: Disapproval.  

Budget/Financial Impact:    All fees have been paid.  

Public Comments: None Received at this time. 

Enforcement Issues: N/A 

 

111

Item 7.



CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS 
PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street •   MAILING: PO Box 384 

Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

• 512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com

Revised 10.2.2019 Page 1 of 12 

SUBDIVISION APPLICATION 

CONTACT INFORMATION 

  Case Number (staff use only): ________-____ 

MEETINGS REQUIRED 
(AS APPLICABLE PER SITE DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE) 

INFORMAL 
CONSULTATION  

PRE-APPLICATION 
CONFERENCE 

DATE: 
______________       
☐ NOT
SCHEDULED

DATE: 
______________       
☐ NOT SCHEDULED

APPLICANT NAME____________________________________________________________________________________ 
COMPANY __________________________________________________________________________________________ 
STREET ADDRESS_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
CITY_______________________________STATE_________________________ ZIP CODE __________________________ 
PHONE________________________ EMAIL_______________________________________________________________ 

OWNER NAME____________________________________________________________________________________ 
COMPANY __________________________________________________________________________________________ 
STREET ADDRESS_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
CITY_______________________________STATE_________________________ ZIP CODE __________________________ 
PHONE________________________ EMAIL_______________________________________________________________ 

PLAT TYPE 

� Amending Plat 

� Minor Plat 

� Replat 

� Final Plat 

� Plat Vacation 

� Other:_______________ 

Bill E. Couch, P.G., AICP CEP
Carlson Brigance and Doering, Inc.

5501 W. Wm. Cannon Dr.
   Austin   TX 78749

512 280-5160 bill@cbdeng.com

Greg Rich
Development Solutions CAT, LLC

12222 Merit Drive, Suite 1020
Dallas TX 75251

(972) 960-2777 grich@siepiela.com 

Plat amendment✔

112

Item 7.



PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 2 of 12 

PROPERTY INFORMATION 
PROPERTY OWNER NAME 

PROPERTY ADDRESS 

CURRENT LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION  

TAX ID # 

LOCATED IN � City Limits 

� Extraterritorial Jurisdiction 

CURRENT LAND ACREAGE 

SCHOOL DISTRICT 

ESD DISTRICT(S) 

ZONING/PDD/OVERLAY 

EXISTING ROAD FRONTAGE � Private         Name: _____________________ 

� State          Name: _____________________  

� City/County (public)       Name: _____________________ 

DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT?  

(If so, please attach 
agreement) 

� Yes (see attached)  

� Not Applicable  

Development Agreement Name: _____________________________ 

ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION
IS PROPERTY OVER THE EDWARDS AQUIFER RECHARGE ZONE? � YES    � NO 

IS PROPERTY OVER THE BARTON SPRINGS CONTRIBUTING ZONE TO THE 
EDWARDS AQUIFER? 

� YES    � NO 

IS PROPERTY WITHIN A FEMA FLOODPLAIN AS DEFINED BY THE MOST CURRENT 
FIRM?  

� YES    � NO 

Development Solutions CAT, LLC
RR 12, DRIPPING SPRINGS, TX 78620

R17804

37.911
Drippings Springs ISD

#1 and #6
PDD

Premier Park Loop

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

113

Item 7.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 3 of 12 

PROJECT INFORMATION
PROPOSED SUBDIVISION 
NAME 

TOTAL ACREAGE OF 
DEVELOPMENT 

TOTAL NUMBER OF LOTS 

AVERAGE SIZE OF LOTS 

INTENDED USE OF LOTS � RESIDENTIAL     � COMMERCIAL    � INDUSTRIAL/OTHER:________________ 

# OF LOTS PER USE RESIDENTIAL: _______________ 

COMMERCIAL: ______________ 

INDUSTRIAL:________________ 

ACREAGE PER USE RESIDENTIAL: _______________ 

COMMERCIAL: ______________ 

INDUSTRIAL:________________ 

LINEAR FEET (ADDED) OF 
PROPOSED ROADS 

PUBLIC:________________ 

PRIVATE:_______________ 

ANTICIPATED 
WASTEWATER SYSTEM 

� CONVENTIONAL SEPTIC SYSTEM 

� CLASS I (AEROBIC) PERMITTED SYSTEM 

� PUBLIC SEWER         

WATER SOURCES SURFACE WATER 

� PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY 

� RAIN WATER 

GROUND WATER* 

� PUBLIC WELL 

� SHARED WELL 

� PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY   

*IF DOING GROUND WATER PROVISION FOR THE DEVELOPMENT USING GROUNDWATER RESOURCES,
THE HAYS-TRINITY GROUNDWATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT MUST BE NOTIFIED:

HAYS-TRINITY GCD NOTIFIED?       � YES    � NO 

Caliterra Ph 4 Sec 11

37.911

109
0.262

103

29.673

5979

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

114

Item 7.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 4 of 12 

COMMENTS: ________________________________________ 

TITLE: ______________________ SIGNATURE: _________________________________ 

PUBLIC UTILITY CHECKLIST

ELECTRIC PROVIDER NAME (if applicable): _______________________________________________ 

� VERIFICATION LETTER ATTACHED    � NOT APPLICABLE 

COMMUNICATIONS PROVIDER NAME (if applicable): ______________________________________ 

� VERIFICATION LETTER ATTACHED    � NOT APPLICABLE 

WATER PROVIDER NAME (if applicable): _________________________________________________ 

� VERIFICATION LETTER ATTACHED    � NOT APPLICABLE 

WASTEWATER PROVIDER NAME (if applicable): ___________________________________________ 

� VERIFICATION LETTER ATTACHED    � NOT APPLICABLE 

GAS PROVIDER NAME (if applicable): ____________________________________________________ 

� VERIFICATION LETTER ATTACHED    � NOT APPLICABLE 

PARKLAND DEDICATION? AGRICULTURE FACILITIES (FINAL PLAT)? 

� YES    � NOT APPLICABLE � YES    � NOT APPLICABLE 

RoW alignment adjustment.

Senior Project Manager 

on file

on file

on file

on file

NA

✔ ✔

115

Item 7.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 5 of 12 

 

 

COMPLIANCE WITH OUTDOOR LIGHTING ORDINANCE?* 

 

(See attached agreement) 

 

*If proposed subdivision is in the City Limits, compliance with the Lighting Ordinance is mandatory. If 
proposed subdivision is in the ETJ, compliance is mandatory when required by a Development 
Agreement, or as a condition of an Alternative Standard/Special Exception/Variance/Waiver.  

 

Voluntary compliance is strongly encouraged by those not required by above criteria (see Outdoor 
Lighting tab on the city’s website at www.cityofdrippingsprings.com and online Lighting Ordinance 
under the Code of Ordinances tab for more information).  

 

� YES (REQUIRED)    � YES (VOLUNTARY*)   � NO  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

✔

116

Item 7.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/
http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 6 of 12 

 

APPLICANT'S SIGNATURE  

Note: An additional signature is required on page 7 of the application verifying completeness. Applications should 
be submitted only when all required information is included in the submittal. 

 

The above information is true to the best of my knowledge. I attest that the real property described is owned by 
me and all others as signed below. If the below signed applicant is not the owner of said property, the signature 
of the property owner must be included below, or consent must be attached (If a corporation, please list title, and 
name of corporation.) 

 

 

 

 

Applicant Name          

 

 

 

Applicant Signature         Date 

 

 

Notary         Date 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Property Owner Name          

 

 

 

Property Owner Signature         Date 

 

Notary Stamp Here 

 

Bill E. Couch 7-26-20

7-26-20

117

Item 7.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 7 of 12 

All required items and information (including all applicable below listed exhibits and fees) must be 
received by the City for an application and request to be considered complete. Incomplete submissions 
will not be deemed filed and complete. By signing below, I acknowledge that I have read through and 
met all requirements for a complete submittal:  

Applicants Signature: _________________________________   Date: _________________________________ 

FINAL, REPLAT, MINOR, AND AMENDING PLAT CHECKLIST 

Subdivision Ordinance, Section 5 
STAFF APPLICANT 

� � Completed application form – including all required notarized signatures 

� � Application fee (refer to Fee Schedule) 

� � Digital Copies/PDF of all submitted items – please provide a coversheet 
outlining what digital contents are included on the CD/USB drive.  

� � County Application Submittal – proof of online submission (if applicable) 

� � ESD No. 6 Application (if applicable) 

� � $240 Fee for ESD No. 6 Application (if applicable) 

� � Billing Contract Form 

� � Engineer’s Summary Report 

� � Drainage Report – if not included in the Engineer’s summary 

� � OSSF Facility Planning Report or approved OSSF permit (if applicable) 

� � Final Plats (11 x 17 to scale)  

� � Copy of Current Configuration of Plat (if applicable) 

� � Copy of Preliminary Plat (if applicable) 

� � Proof of final acceptance of all public infrastructure by the jurisdiction that 
will own and maintain it; or posting of fiscal for public infrastructure.  

� � Digital Data (GIS) of Subdivision 

� � Tax Certificates – verifying that property taxes are current 

� � Copy of Notice Letter to the School District – notifying of preliminary 
submittal 

� � Outdoor Lighting Ordinance Compliance Agreement 

7-26-20

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

118

Item 7.

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 8 of 12 

 

� � Development Agreement/PDD (If applicable) 

� � Cost estimate of public infrastructure improvements (all public infrastructure 
improvements including water, wastewater, roads, drainage, curbs, 
sidewalks, etc.) (if applicable).  

*A Final Plat application will not be accepted if staff has not already 
approved this. 

� � Documentation showing approval of driveway locations (TxDOT, County)  

� � Documentation showing Hays County 911 Addressing approval (If applicable) 

� � Parkland Dedication fee (if applicable)  

� � $25 Public Notice Sign Fee 

� � Ag Facility Fees - $35 per residential LUE (if applicable) 

� � Proof of Utility Service (Water & Wastewater) or permit to serve 

� � Preliminary Conference Form signed by City Staff 

 

FINAL PLAT INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS 

� � A vicinity, or location, map that shows the location of the proposed Plat within 
the City (or within its ETJ) and in relationship to existing roadways. 

� � Boundary lines, abstract/survey lines, corporate and other jurisdictional 
boundaries, existing or proposed highways and street right-of-way, bearings 
and distances sufficient to locate the exact area proposed for the subdivision, 
and all survey monuments including any required concrete monuments (per 
the City Engineer); the length and bearing of all straight lines, radii, arc lengths, 
tangent lengths and central angles of all curves shall be indicated along the 
lines of each lot or Unit (curve and line data may be placed in a table format); 
accurate reference ties via courses and distances to at least one recognized 
abstract or survey corner or existing subdivision corner shall be shown. 

� � The name, location and recording information of all adjacent subdivisions (or 
property owners of adjacent unplatted property), including those located on 
the other sides of roads or creeks, shall be drawn to the same scale and shown 
in dotted lines adjacent to the tract proposed for subdivision in sufficient 
detail to show accurately the existing streets, alleys, building setbacks, lot and 
block numbering, easements, and other features that may influence the 
layout of development of the proposed subdivision; adjacent unplatted land 
shall show property lines, the names of owners of record, and the recording 
information. 

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

119

Item 7.

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 9 of 12 

� � The location, widths and names of all street right-of-way and easements (it 
shall be the applicant’s responsibility to coordinate with appropriate utility 
entities for placement of necessary utility easements and for location of all 
streets and median openings on highways or arterial roadways), existing or 
proposed, within the subdivision limits and adjacent to the subdivision; a list 
of proposed street names shall be submitted (in the form of a letter or memo 
along with the application form) for all new street names (street name 
approval is required at the time the Plat is approved) 

� � The location of all existing property lines, existing lot and block numbers and 
date recorded, easements of record (with recording information), 

� � Proposed arrangement and square footage of lots or Units (including lot and 
block numbers or Unit numbers). 

� � All sheets shall have a title block which shows the title or name under which 
the proposed subdivision is to be recorded; the name, address and phone 
number of the property owner(s); the name, address and phone number of 
the licensed engineer or registered professional land surveyor who prepared 
the plat/plans; the scale of the plat/plans; the date the plat/plan was 
prepared; and the location of the property according to the abstract or survey 
records of Hays County, Texas.  

� � Sites, if any, to be reserved or dedicated for parks, schools, playgrounds, 
other public uses or for private facilities or amenities 

� � Scale (including a graphic scale), date, north arrow oriented to the top or left 
side of the sheet, and other pertinent informational data 

� � All physical features of the property to be subdivided shall be shown, 
including: 

- The location and size of all watercourses; and

- 100-year floodplain according to Federal Emergency Management Agency
(FEMA) information; and

- Water Quality Buffer Zones as required by [WQO 22.05.017]

- Drainage ways and drainage easements.  Drainage easements are required
for bypass of any offsite flows and for concentrated flows conveyed across
lots.  Drainage easements shall be large enough to contain the 100-yr storm
[Sub. Ord. 12.2.2].

- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers flowage easement requirements; and

- All critical environmental features (CEFs) such as karsts, springs, sinkholes,

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

120

Item 7.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 10 of 12 

 

caves, etc., to be located and documentation to be signed and certified by a 
geologist. All CEF to have a minimum setback of 150’. All designated wetlands 
to be certified as such by an accredited wetland biologist relying the presence 
of wetlands plant species.  

- Drainage area in acres or area draining into subdivisions (to be included in 
drainage report and construction plans); and 

 

� � Existing zoning of the subject property and all adjacent properties if within the 
city limits. 

� � Provide notes identifying the following: 
• Owner responsible for operation and maintenance of stormwater 

facilities. 

• Owner/operator of water and wastewater utilities. 

• Owner/operator of roadway facilities 

� � Certificates and other language shall be included on the plat, pursuant to the 
following Subsections: A statement signed by the property owner(s) and 
acknowledged before a Notary Public that the subdivided area is legally 
owned by the applicant. 

- A statement signed by the property owner(s) and acknowledged before a 
Notary Public that the subdivided area is legally owned by the applicant.  

- An accurate legal, such as by metes and bounds, description by bearings 
and distances (including necessary curve and line data), accurate to the 
nearest one hundredth of a foot, for all boundary, block and lot lines, with 
descriptions correlated to a permanent survey monument. 

- The registered professional land surveyor’s certificate, with a place for his 
or her signature and notarization of his or her signature. 

- A place for plat approval signature of the Chair or Vice Chair, in the Chair’s 
absence) of the Planning and Zoning Commission, a place for the City 
Secretary to attest such signature, and the approval dates by Planning and 
Zoning Commission. 

- Appendices to this Chapter contain certificates and languages to be used 
on the plat to accommodate the above requirements: 

 

 

 

 

✔

✔

✔

121

Item 7.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 11 of 12 

 

 

 
 

NARRATIVE OF COMPLIANCE 
A written narrative describing how all portions of the subdivision meets all requirements of this code 
and other codes, including landscaping, lighting, parkland dedication, site development, water quality 
protection, and zoning, as may be relevant.  

Outdoor Lighting,    
Article 24.06 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Parkland Dedication, 
Article 28.03 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Landscaping and Tree 
Preservation, Article 
28.06 

 

 

 

 
 

Planned development complies with city code consistent with the
appproved Development Agreement provided with this application
and consistent with previous sections of the development.

Planned development complies with city code consistent with the
appproved Development Agreement provided with this application
and consistent with previous sections of the development.

Planned development complies with city code consistent with the
appproved Development Agreement provided with this application
and consistent with previous sections of the development.

122

Item 7.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 12 of 12 

 

 

 

 
 

Subdivision, 28.02, 
Exhibit A 

This section shall also include, depending on what type of plat is being filed, how public or 
private improvements will meet City standards, including water quality, drainage, 
stormwater, and fire  (if applicable).  

 

 

 

 

 

 
Zoning, Article 30.02, 
Exhibit A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Planned development complies with city code consistent with the
appproved Development Agreement provided with this application
and consistent with previous sections of the development.

Planned development complies with city code consistent with the
appproved Development Agreement provided with this application
and consistent with previous sections of the development.

123

Item 7.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


124

Item 7.



125

Item 7.



126

Item 7.



      

 

     

 

 

 

     

      

Date: November 5, 2021 
 

   

      

Bill Couch 

Carlson Brigance and Doering, Inc 

5501 W. Wm Cannon Dr. 
Austin TX 78749 

bill@cbdeng.com 
 

   

      

Permit Number: SUB2021-0064 

Project Name: Caliterra Ph 4 Sec 11 Final Plat 
Project Address: Premier Park Loop, Dripping Springs, TX, TX 
78620 

 

  

      

City staff has completed its review of the above-named project. Reviewer comments are provided below. These 
comments are intended to be comprehensive; howerver, there may be additional comments after reviewing the submitted 
corrections. Applicants are encouraged to contact reviewers directly with questions.  

 

      

City Planner Comments 

The following comments have been provided by Tory Carpenter. Should you have any questions or require additional 
information, please contact Tory Carpenter by email tcarpenter@cityofdrippingsprings.com. 

  1. Update the city approval statement to read: "Big Skye Ranch Phase four has been approved by the Planning & 
Zoning Commission on the __ day of _______, 20__." (4.7r) 

  2. Remove Michelle's signature and add a signature for the City Secretary and Planning & Zoning Commission 
Chair. (4.7r) 

  3. Provide dwg or shapefile for the boundary of the property.  

  4. Provide County 1445 approval letter.  
 

      

All resubmittals must be transmitted to the Planning Department at the City of Dripping Springs or uploaded to 
www.mygovernmentonline.org**.  
 

Resubmittals must include a cover letter addressing each reviewer comment and noting where associated 
corrections/revisions/changes can be found in the submittal documents. Please keep previous review comments on 
the document as you resubmit your response letter, so that staff can keep track of the original comments. 
Resubmittals that do not include a cover letter will be considered incomplete and returned.  
 

Note regarding plats subject to Planning and Zoning Commission review: Resubmittals of corrected plats and associated 
plans must be received no later than seven (7) calendar days prior to the scheduled P&Z meeting for final review and 
inclusion in the P&Z packets [Ch. 28, Ex. A, Sec. 3.8]. 
 

Note regarding Site Development Plans: Revisions must be submitted within 60 days of the date of this letter or a new 
application will be required [Sec. 28.04.011]. 

 

      

127

Item 7.



11/5/2021 11:39:02 AM 
Caliterra Ph 4 Sec 11 Final Plat 
SUB2021-0064 
Page 2 

 

 

  

Regards,  
 

Tory Carpenter,  
 

 

****If you are wanting to resubmit on My Government Online, go to www.mygovernmentonline.org and login using 
your customer portal account.  After login, click the My Account link located at the top right section of the screen to 
open the My Account Dashboard.  Scroll down to the "My Permits" section and locate the project.  Click "View Permit" 
to open the project.  Scroll down to the section of your project labeled "Customer Documents."  Click the "Add New 
File" link located to the far right to upload your files.  The jurisdiction will be notified automatically after you've 
uploaded the files.  If you are new to the MyGovernmentOnline customer portal, please note that instructions are 
available on the portal by clicking the "HELP" link or you may call the technical support line at 1-866-957-3764, option 1 
for assistance using the online portal. 

 

      

 

128

Item 7.



Comprehensive Plan Services Page 1 of 23 

 

 
 
 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS, TEXAS 

Request for Qualifications “Comprehensive Plan and Development Code Services” 
 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Notice is hereby given that the City of Dripping Springs, Texas is soliciting Statements of 
Qualifications for 2045 Comprehensive Plan and Development Code Services.  
 
Sealed Statements of Qualifications must be submitted in one (1) original, eight (8) copies, 
and one (1) electronic copy in PDF formant on a flash drive and shall be delivered to:  
 
Statements of Qualifications must be submitted by 2 p.m. on December 3, 2021, at which time 
the statements will be publicly opened and acknowledged aloud. Statements received after the 
opening date and time will not be considered.  
 
City of Dripping Springs, Texas  
Attn: Howard Koontz, Planning Director  
511 Mercer Street or P.O. Box 384  
Dripping Springs, Texas 78620  
 
The City seeks the services of a professional land planning firm with extensive experience, skill, 
and success in the development of comprehensive plans, community visioning services, 
development codes, and similar processes. The selected consultant will be responsible for 
facilitating the creation of the City’s 2045 Comprehensive Plan and updated Development 
Codes. 
 
If additional information is requested, please email questions to Howard Koontz, Planning Director 
at hkoontz@cityofdrippingsprings.com with “Comprehensive Plan Services” in the subject line. 
RFQs may be viewed online at the City’s website at www.cityofdrippingsprings.com. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

129

Item 8.



Comprehensive Plan Services Page 2 of 23 

 

 
The City of Dripping Springs (“City”) intends to develop a Comprehensive Plan and an updated 
Development Code to ensure quality and responsible development of the City.  The City now 
intends to enter into one (1) contract with a consulting firm as a professional service provider, to 
provide the following services. 
 
REQUEST FOR STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS: 
 
The City of Dripping Springs, hereinafter referred to as “the City”, is soliciting Statement of 
Qualifications (SOQ) from professional land planning firms, hereinafter referred to as “Applicant,” 
which have extensive experience, skill, and success in the development of comprehensive plans, 
community visioning services, development codes, and similar processes.  The Applicant awarded 
the contract is referred to herein as “the Consultant.” 
 
Statement of Qualifications are due at 2 p.m. on December 3, 2021 and will be opened by City 
Staff at that time. Proposals will become public, as required by the Texas Public Information Act, 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 552 after the contract is awarded.  
 
Project Description and Work to be Performed 
 
Project Description 
 
The purpose of this Request for Qualification (RFQ) is to select a qualified comprehensive land 
planning consultant for the preparation of a local Comprehensive Plan pursuant to Texas standards 
and procedures and the best management practices for comprehensive planning.  The 
Comprehensive Plan shall include a Future Land Use Map for properties within city limits and in 
the extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ).  The current city limits and ETJ map can be located here:  
https://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/sites/g/files/vyhlif6956/f/uploads/city_limits_map_04.09
.19.pdf.   In addition to the Comprehensive Plan, the City also seeks an updated Development 
Code which would include an update to the Zoning Code and Subdivision Regulations.  The 
Development Code would also include insertion and harmonization of the existing landscaping 
ordinance and sign ordinance. Proposers shall submit their qualifications to perform these tasks to 
the City which will be based on instructions and specifications provided herein. 
 
The existing Comprehensive Plan was adopted in 2016 and is the long-range planning document 
that has helped guide the City of Dripping Springs over the last five years. The Comprehensive 
Plan is a policy document that assists decision-making and administrative actions in an effort to 
guide the city towards the community’s preferred future. Concurrent to this updated 
Comprehensive Plan adoption, the City has also adopted a City-wide Trails Plan; a Parks, 
Recreation and Open Space Master Plan; and a Transportation Master Plan, demonstrating the 
City’s continued commitment and efforts toward establishing an encompassing guiding policy 
document. 
 
The current Zoning Ordinance was adopted in 2006 and has been updated semi-annually.  The 
Development Code would incorporate an updated Zoning Code and existing related land use 
ordinances that would be harmonized with the updated Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Code.  

130

Item 8.

https://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/sites/g/files/vyhlif6956/f/uploads/city_limits_map_04.09.19.pdf
https://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/sites/g/files/vyhlif6956/f/uploads/city_limits_map_04.09.19.pdf


Comprehensive Plan Services Page 3 of 23 

 

Background of Dripping Springs 
 
Geographically, the City of Dripping Springs is prwithinently located along U.S. Highway 290 at 
its intersection of Hays County Ranch Road 12 in northern Hays County, Texas. The city’s 
corporate limits are not bordered by any other city’s borders, but the expansive extraterritorial 
jurisdiction sits adjacent to Travis County and the City of Austin on the east, Kyle and Buda to the 
east-southeast, and Wimberley to the south. With its unique development pattern separate from 
other areas and cities in Hays County and the Texas Hill Country at-large, the residents in this area 
have always identified themselves as living in “Dripping.” The official City limits do not extend 
beyond the Hays County line, but a few minor parcels in the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction do extend 
into Travis County. 
 
Dripping Springs has a Council-Administrator form of government. The elected six-member 
Mayor & City Council appoints a City Administrator who is charged with implementing the 
policies of the Council as well as overseeing the day-to-day operations of City government. An 
appointed Planning & Zoning Commission has the authority to make recommendations on plats, 
conditional use petitions, and makes recommendations to the City Council regarding zoning 
variances, amendments to the Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and Zoning Map. 
 
In the years since the adoption of the current updated Comprehensive Plan (2016), Dripping 
Springs has grown rapidly in population, a continuation of a trend that began prior to 2010. The 
city’s population has grown roughly 200% since the 2000 Census, and 160% since 2010 alone. 
Today it is expected that Dripping Springs’ population is roughly 5,000 within the official 
corporate limits, and the total population including the Extra Territorial Jurisdiction is over eight 
times that figure. The original Town of Dripping Springs was just a handful of acres, but today 
covers roughly 8.7 square miles and is surrounded by a 112 square mile extra-territorial 
jurisdiction. 
 
As noted in the city’s 2016 Comprehensive Plan, “Dripping Springs has been managing explosive 
growth for many years, and this growth is expected to continue. This has led to increased pressure 
on City infrastructure, recreational facilities, the school district, and the quality of life that has 
attracted, and continues to bring, new residents. The City has worked very hard to protect 
community values and quality of life in the face of this growth.” The juxtaposition of Dripping 
Springs being located 24 miles from the state capitol building of a state where, if it were sovereign, 
would hold the 10th highest gross domestic product in the world, and its deep roots in rural, 
agrarian land uses and economy poses a unique challenge for the future development pattern of 
the city. Add to that the city’s position over an environmentally sensitive ground water contributing 
zone, and the few existing highway and street corridors, and you can start to get a picture of the 
development pressures and their associated impediments. For these reasons and more, thoughtful, 
proactive development policy is paramount to the success of Dripping Springs in the immediate 
and long-term future. 
  
II.   SCOPE OF WORK 
 
The Consultant shall assist the City of Dripping Springs to develop and adopt an all new 
‘Comprehensive Plan 2045’ that meets or exceeds jurisdictional requirements and common 

131

Item 8.



Comprehensive Plan Services Page 4 of 23 

 

standards for local comprehensive planning. The Consultant shall also assist the City to develop 
and adopt an updated Development Code with an updated Zoning Code and insertion of existing 
land use ordinances that have been harmonized with the updated Comprehensive Plan and Zoning 
Code.  Said Plan and Code shall be transmitted to the City no later than November 1, 2022, unless 
otherwise indicated by the City. This takes into account the full adoption process that extends 
approximately two months for two (2) Public Hearings before the Planning and Zoning 
Commission, and two (2) readings of the ordinance adopting the plan before the Mayor and City 
Council. The Plan is expected to be approved and in effect as of December 31, 2022. 
 
TASK 1: COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION PLAN 
 
The following provides a ‘Task by Task’ outline of the key steps in the development of the 
Comprehensive Plan. The City of Dripping Springs’s Comprehensive Plan 2045 and updated 
Development Code needs to be developed to effectively hear the City’s population and to 
understand the community’s desires regarding the required elements of the plan and the intent of 
the community’s citizens to establish an orderly plan to prioritize and accomplish diverse goals 
and objectives. 
 
1.1. Development Committee 

1.1.1. City staff shall establish a Development Committee, made up of local stakeholders and 
officials. The Development Committee will meet with the Consultant on a periodic basis to 
review draft materials, provide guidance regarding local preferences, and make 
recommendations regarding the various components of the Comprehensive Plan and updated 
Development Code. 
 
1.1.2. The agenda for the initial meeting of the Development Committee will include four 
items: 

 
1.1.2.1. The State’s requirements for comprehensive planning and zoning code 
amendments; 
1.1.2.2. The Development Committee will be asked to discuss their understanding of the 
setting, relationships, and history of the area that forms the City of Dripping Springs, and 
consider the utilization or adaptation of some elements of the existing 2016 Comprehensive 
Plan and Zoning Code, as well as related land use ordinances; 
1.1.2.3. The Development Committee will be asked to review potential methods to engage 
the public in the comprehensive planning and development code process; and identify a 
broad array of possible community participation techniques, locations to collect this input, 
and select the ones that seem most appropriate to the local jurisdiction. 
1.1.2.4. A schedule for these meetings will be developed by the consultant and presented 
to the Committee. 

 
1.1.3 Periodic Review Meetings: Development Committee will continue to meet on a periodic 
basis and will be asked to represent local stakeholders as they facilitate the preparation of the 
Community Participation Plan, the Community Assessment, and the Community Agenda 
elements of the Comprehensive Plan and development code. The Development Committee will 
be asked to review the City’s statements of policies, goals and objectives and make 

132

Item 8.



Comprehensive Plan Services Page 5 of 23 

 

recommendations about issues and opportunities, conceptual scenarios and alternatives, 
project lists, and priorities. The second meeting will be prior to completion of the Community 
Assessment to serve as a check on the planning data and following meetings will be at key 
points of the Community Agenda process. Up to ten (10) meetings with the Development 
Committee are anticipated. Meetings should be concentrated in the Vision, Goals, and Policies 
phase. Additional meetings will be scheduled, as needed at the discretion of the Client. 

 
1.1.4 Development Committee meetings may occasionally occur remotely, via electronic 
means such as video conferencing, telephone conferencing and/or internet-based call-in media. 

 
1.2. Other Public Input Engagement Methods. Community input and visioning are core and 
critical elements of the Comprehensive Plan and development code process. Offeror shall propose 
additional public engagement that will be effective in communicating the process and gathering 
input. Dripping Springs places a premium on multiple, first person, public engagement activities 
that elicit raw data points from the community at-large from which the policy of the 
Comprehensive Plan and the updated development code will be written. The consultant will work 
with the city’s Project Manager to develop an extensive public involvement plan. The plan should 
take advantage of new and existing technologies to make it easy for the public to access 
information and promote participation by all segments of the community. The City of Dripping 
Springs is particularly interested in the firm’s experience in successfully engaging the community 
through a variety of innovative methods. 
 
The consultant team must demonstrate extensive expertise and experience in the public 
participation and facilitation processes. Regarding public participation, the consultant team must 
have strong leadership and creativity to provide clear direction in participation techniques that 
result in inclusive yet timely decisions. Offeror should note its experience in developing and 
managing visioning and public input. 
 
1.3. Timeline & Schedule. A detailed timeline and written schedule will be prepared by Consultant 
and approved by the Client to establish the schedule for planning meetings and delivery dates 
throughout the planning process.   
 
TASK 2: MINIMUM CONTENT FOR COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND DEVELOPMENT 
CODE 
 
Dripping Springs has adopted a few specialty plans that are filed in the city secretary’s office: Such 
plans include the City’s Parks, Recreation & Open Space Master Plan; City-wide Trails Plan; and 
Transportation Master Plan. Additionally, the city has an active Historic Preservation Commission, 
a multi-jurisdictional Transportation Committee, an Economic Development Committee, a Parks 
& Recreation Commission, Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone No. 1 & No. 2 Board, an 
Emergency Management Commission, and a Utility Commission. The fundamental tenets of these 
plans, commissions, and committees should be incorporated by reference into the text and goals 
of the city’s next comprehensive plan.  The City has also adopted updates to its Zoning Code as 
well as multiple Planned Development Districts that should be reviewed and incorporated into the 
updated zoning code.   
 

133

Item 8.



Comprehensive Plan Services Page 6 of 23 

 

In addition to the above minimum standards, the Consultant will collect and analyze a range of 
information about existing conditions and the potential for the future of the City of Dripping 
Springs, including a review and analysis of the Community Assessment adopted in 2016 and 
subsequent addenda. Information will be based on a thorough understanding of existing plans and 
programs affecting the city, and on input, inventories, and analyses undertaken by the Consultant. 
Previously compiled data will be used and incorporated where possible. Emphasis will be on the 
identification of features and conditions that may influence or affect the planning process, rather 
than extensive documentation of existing conditions other than what is necessary to comply with 
State standards.  All spatial data and analysis shall be produced and delivered to include ESRI GIS 
layers as appropriate. 
 
2.1 Identification of Community Goals. The City of Dripping Springs’s Community Goals element 
needs to be established to effectively represent the community’s vision and direction for the future. 
The consultant will lead multiple interactive discussions with the community, staff, and 
Development Committee to gain meaningful participation and input in order to either prepare a 
new vision statement, list of community goals and/or policies, or Character Area-specific goals 
along with a defining narrative. This should be an organic process that allows the community to 
actively participate in setting the City’s direction for the future.  
 
2.2 Needs and Opportunities. The Consultant will review the current Needs and Opportunities list 
for the community and work with City staff and community stakeholders to make 
recommendations for additions, revisions or deletions. The list must be reviewed by the 
Development Committee with new or revised items going through the SWOT (strengths, 
weaknesses, opportunities, and threats) or similar analysis of the community and then prioritized 
as community objectives. Needs and Opportunities that the community identified as high priority 
must be followed-up with corresponding implementation measures in the Community Work 
Program (CWP).  
 
2.3 Community Work Program. The final product of the Comprehensive Plan including the future 
land use map will not be an academic analysis but will be a plan for the next 10 years with metrics 
for work to be completed and timelines that should be followed to complete the goals of the plan. 
The updated Development Code should be a practical tool that is harmonized with the 
Comprehensive Plan and that incorporates current and updated land use ordinances. The 
Consultant will not only create a Community Work Program to incorporate any new or revised 
Needs and Opportunities identified during the process, but also revise any implementation 
measures and specific activities the community plans to undertake during the next five and ten 
years so as to address the priority Needs and Opportunities, identified Target Areas (if applicable), 
or to achieve portions of the Community Goals. This includes any activities, initiatives, programs, 
ordinances, administrative systems (such as site plan review, design review, etc.) to be put in place 
to implement the plan. The Community Work Program will include the following information for 
each listed activity:  
• Brief description of the activity;  
• Legal authorization for the activity, if applicable;  
• Timeframe for initiating and completing the activity;  
• Responsible party for implementing the activity;  
• Estimated cost (if any) of implementing the activity; and  

134

Item 8.



Comprehensive Plan Services Page 7 of 23 

 

• Funding source(s), if applicable.  
 
2.4. Identification of other potential issues and opportunities: 
 

2.4.1. Population:  Demographic statistics will be inventoried and assessed. The primary data 
source to be used will be the 2020 U.S. Census and subsequent updates. More locally relevant 
estimates may be used to supplement the Census data and identify where immediate trends 
have shifted or accelerated. 
 
2.4.2. Economic development: The Economic Development Element provides the opportunity 
to inventory and assess the community's economic base, labor force characteristics (including 
its spatial distribution over time), tax gap, and local economic development opportunities and 
resources; to determine economic needs and goals; and to merge this information with 
information about population trends and characteristics, natural resources, community 
facilities and services, housing and land use so that a strategy for the economic well-being of 
the community can be developed.  The analysis shall include the following, at a minimum: 
• Demographics overview and analysis  
• Socio economic analysis 
• Business base/business sector analysis (could include a Target Industry Analysis) 
• Real estate analysis (commercial nodes) 
• Tax Gap analysis 
• Downtown District/Corridor analysis 
• Education performance data – K-12 and Higher Ed 
• Infrastructure and commuting analysis 
• Daytime population/workers 
• Strategic organization inventory 

 
2.4.3. The city’s transportation network and its future utility as roadways experience 
exponential increases in daily trips from both internal development and surrounding 
expansion(s) that create additional, external thru trips. Already businesses in Dripping Springs 
experience loss in participation and sales due to the inability for patrons to access brick & 
mortar stores along congested transportation corridors. Volume delays and under-performing 
intersections add to the gridlock and failing performance of some of the city’s highest-
classification roadways. 
 
2.4.4 Historic character --and the community’s values that have made Dripping Springs the 
region it is, are two aspects that contribute to the city’s sense of place. It’s an ethos that has 
been blurred since the introduction of the style of growth currently emerging in and around the 
Highway 290/RR12 region. This commitment on the part of city leaders and long-time 
residents to maintain a connection to the immediate past and preserve the way of life that has 
been so familiar for the past generation should be an over-arching concept that shapes the 
comprehensive plan’s style of accommodating growth. This will appear in recommendations 
for design metrics, such as architectural styles and building massing and location(s), as well as 
an incentive to build in a historically relevant pattern.  The City has three historic districts 
including the Mercer Street, Hays Street, and Old Fitzhugh Road Historic Districts.  
 

135

Item 8.



Comprehensive Plan Services Page 8 of 23 

 

2.4.5 Housing, and all the challenges presented in creating an affordable, attainable, and varied 
housing stock in sufficient numbers to accommodate all the persons who would seek to live 
here, without eliminating the quality of life already present. A healthy opportunity for entry-
level products up through estate ranches and farmettes, including the crucial “missing middle” 
product must be a high priority for the city over the next two decades.  

 
2.4.6 The remaining elements shall be reviewed and updated as determined necessary through 
the process.  Where available, subsequent master plans shall be consulted and incorporated 
into future updates. 

 
2.5. Analysis of existing development patterns (existing land use), existing Overlays, and 
Character Area review. 
 

2.5.1. Existing Land Use Map: The consultant will conduct an existing land use inventory of 
the City of Dripping Springs and areas in the immediate fringe around the city, based on 
standard categories, which will be produced in Geographic Information Systems (GIS) format 
and produced in color. The maps will be revised based on input from staff, stakeholders, and 
the general public as may be received. The method for producing the existing land use maps 
shall be a combination of field survey, review and interpretation of aerial photographs, analysis 
of prior city land use maps, and if necessary, tax assessor records. Consultant shall also produce 
estimates of acreage within each existing land use category.  
 
2.5.2. Existing Overlays and Character Areas (subject to refinement): The Consultant will 
evaluate existing Overlays, Planned Development Districts, and Character Areas and draft and 
present in map form, along with text descriptions, recommendations for “Character Areas” that 
identify unique sub-areas of the City. These sub-areas will be utilized for determination(s) of 
future land use actions by the City Council and city staff, as well as the functional boundary 
for future sub-area plans that may be adopted by reference into this plan. 

 
2.6. GIS Data Collection and Organization. The Client anticipates the use of spatial data compiled 
in GIS, including all data layers necessary to develop the Existing Land Use Map. Population and 
demographic trends, political jurisdictions, natural and cultural resources areas, and community 
facilities and services will be located and compiled into spatial data layers to allow the creation 
of data overlays that will be used to create the Existing Land Use Plan and the Future 
Development Map, and to facilitate discussion in Development Committee meetings, public 
meetings, meetings with the staff and other officials, and future use of the plan. Mapping will be 
coordinated with Dripping Springs staff to ensure that the plan addresses local priorities, as well 
as any regional and State-wide concerns. Data layers will be provided in the form of ESRI 
Shapefiles, and the Consultant will coordinate with the projection information for the Shapefiles 
with the City. Existing GIS data will be utilized in order to take advantage of the knowledge and 
experience currently imbedded in existing database schemas. Other database objects that will be 
addressed are the transportation network and other components, which will have the opportunity 
to interact with these databases. The purpose of the database design is to ensure that the design 
looks at the big picture. 

 

136

Item 8.



Comprehensive Plan Services Page 9 of 23 

 

Taking this approach will help to identify as many database objects as possible in order to 
produce a design that will be thorough while still retaining the ability to scale the design in the 
future. 
• Key GIS Layers for Production or Updates: 

• Location Layer 
• Existing Land Use Layer 
• Future Land Use Layer 
• Character Area Layer 
• Entitlements Layer (Development Agreements/PDDs) 
• Areas Requiring Special Attention Layer 
• Natural Features Layer — Water Resources: showing rivers and streams, 

wetlands, 100-year flood plain, groundwater recharge areas, and water supply 
basins. 

• Natural Features Layer — Conservation Areas: showing planned Green-space 
areas, major parks and recreation areas, and scenic views and sites. 

• Existing Transportation Facilities Layer: showing the road network and 
classifications, bicycle/pedestrian and other transportation facilities as 
appropriate. 

• Transportation Plan Layer: showing the proposed improvements to the road 
network and other transportation facilities as appropriate (including pedestrian 
and bike facilities). 

• Community Service Facilities Layer: showing existing and proposed public 
safety facilities, hospitals and other public health facilities, parks and recreation 
facilities, general governmental administrative facilities, educational facilities, 
libraries, and other cultural facilities within the City of Dripping Springs.  

 
2.7 For the Development Code, the Consultant will be responsible for recommending the 
organization and style of the Ordinances with the concurrence of the Planning Director. The 
Ordinances should be efficient and user friendly in both hard copy and on‐line formats. The 
ordinance should use cross‐referencing, illustrations and tables as a secondary mechanism to make 
the ordinances user-friendly.  The Consultant will be responsible for all drafting and redrafting of 
text, illustrations, maps and exhibits after receiving input from the Development Committee, 
citizens, stakeholders, staff, the P&Z, and the City Council. 
 

2.7.1 Incorporate recommendations that are related to zoning from the updated Comprehensive 
Plan into the revised and updated development code. This will include, but is not limited to, 
the following: 

a) Restructuring the zoning districts to be consistent with the goals of the updated 
Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Plan; 

b) Provide a complete glossary/definition of terms; 
c) Remove obsolete regulations and create consistency between each of the zoning 
articles and districts as well as the existing land use ordinances; 
d) Provide a single and complete permitted land use table; 
e) Provide diagrams and exhibits that depict zoning concepts (i.e. setbacks, 

compatibility, buffers, measurements, etc.) where appropriate; 

137

Item 8.



Comprehensive Plan Services Page 10 of 23 

 

f) Address issue of non-conforming uses and structures. 
2.7.2 Not Included in the Scope of Services 
Sign, site, and subdivision regulations will remain separate from the zoning 
ordinance, but will be included in the Development Code.  
2.7.3 Deliverables 

a) Convene, organize, and lead multiple stakeholder workshops; 
b) Iterative drafts and final draft of the revised ordinance for staff & stakeholder 

review; 
c) PowerPoint presentations for stakeholder, commission, and council meetings; 
d) Updated zoning map based on City GIS datasets and in a digital format 

approved by City GIS staff (such as ESRI layer files); and 
e) Comprehensive zoning ordinance (digital versions in formats to be approved 

by the City staff (such as .pdf & .docx). 
 

TASK 3: ADOPTION PROCESS 
 
3.1. Planning & Zoning Commission Review and Recommendation. Two (2) public hearings will 
be held before the Planning and Zoning Commission and shall occur to allow additional public 
input. The Committee will review and make a recommendation prior to adoption of the transmittal 
resolution to the City Administrator for the Plan and updated Development Code by approval of 
City Council. 
 
3.2. Adoption by the City. The City’s elected decision-makers are charged with the responsibility 
of adopting the Comprehensive Plan and Development Code. The Consultant will attend the 
meeting associated with the adoption process to respond to any questions or comments, and where 
appropriate, make presentations regarding the Plan. 
 
3.3. Adopting Ordinance. An ordinance will be prepared by Consultant for the elected officials for 
adoption of the Plan. The final transmittal shall be conducted in advance of the deadline of 
November 1, 2022, in accordance with the City’s Agenda Policy 
 
3.4. Documentation. After adoption of the Comprehensive Plan and updated Development Code 
by the City, the Consultant will provide digital and hardcopy of the originals (including all maps, 
charts, tables, etc.) for the City in addition to three (3) copies of printed and bound versions of the 
completed plan. 
 
 
III. SUBMISSION AND EVALUATION 
 
1.1. Response Format 

1.1.1. Economy of Presentation 
Submittals shall be prepared simply and economically, providing straight-forward, concise 
delineation of the Offeror's capabilities to satisfy the requirements of this RFQ. Elaborate 
bindings, colored displays, and promotional material are not required. Emphasis on each 
statement must be on completeness and clarity of content. There is no expectation that 
submittal materials will be returned to the Offeror during or after the selection process. To 

138

Item 8.



Comprehensive Plan Services Page 11 of 23 

 

expedite the evaluation of proposals, it is essential that Offerors follow the format and 
instructions contained herein. 
 
1.1.2. Organization and Content of Proposals 
The response package shall be organized in a manner such that the following requirements in 
the RFQ are cross-referenced in the submittal materials. The locations within the applicant’s 
response where each requirement is met must be identified.   
 
The Offeror MUST provide this information in the submittal which will be evaluated and 
assigned points as determined by the Evaluation Committee, by way of preparation of an 
evaluation worksheet(s) that will follow the RFQ stated requirements. Evaluation worksheets 
are not available during the solicitation process, but are available after award, as are all other 
solicitation documentation. 
 
1.1.3. Sheet Count 
The Technical Proposal shall have a maximum sheet count of 30 sheets, including all required 
material detailed herein, tabs, covers, etc.  Proposals that exceed the maximum page count may 
not be reviewed; responses which include pricing or costs estimates integral to the technical 
proposal may not be reviewed; financial proposals and costs estimates shall only be submitted 
after qualifications are evaluated and ranked and such submittals are requested by City.  

 
1.2. Technical Proposal Content 

1.2.1. Cover Letter  
This letter will summarize in a brief and concise manner the firm’s understanding of the Scope 
of Work. The letter must name all persons authorized to represent the firm, and include the 
titles, addresses, and telephone numbers of such persons. 
 
1.2.2. Technical Experience 
Detail no fewer than three (3) example projects (1 page maximum for each example) that best 
illustrate the team’s ability to provide the requested services. Explain how these projects are 
similar to this request and similar to Dripping Springs’s size and provenance, and what the 
anticipated differences might be. Provide client reference names and telephone numbers. 
 
1.2.3. Scope of Services 

1.2.3.1. Statement of understanding 
1.2.3.2. Methodology to complete tasks 
1.2.3.3. Work Schedule/Proposed timeline 

 
1.2.4. Organization profile and qualifications 
 
1.2.5. Qualifications of key personnel 
 

1.3. Proposal Submittal. Proposals must be submitted at the specified location no later than the 
date and time specified herein, and if required presented in two parts: a Technical Proposal (eight 
(8) printed originals and one electronic copy). The proposal packages shall be sealed in separate 
envelopes (may be same box) and identified as follows: 

139

Item 8.



Comprehensive Plan Services Page 12 of 23 

 

 
Technical Proposal (as applicable) 
Title: Comprehensive Plan 2045 
Address:  City of Dripping Springs 

    Attn: Howard Koontz, Planning Director 
    511 Mercer Street or P.O. Box 384 
  Dripping Springs, Texas 78620 

Submittal Date and Time: December 3, 2021 @ 2:00 p.m. CST 
 
2.1. Evaluation Criteria and Process 
 

2.1.1. Administrative Review of Proposals 
All proposals received will be reviewed to ensure that all administrative requirements of the 
RFQ package have been met by the Offerors. Proposals failing to meet these requirements or 
to include all the required statements and affirmations may be automatically rejected as not 
being responsive. All technical proposals that meet the administrative requirements will then 
be forwarded to the technical evaluation team members for further evaluation. 

 
2.1.2. Evaluation Committee 
The Evaluation Committee will review all proposals received and determine a ranking. 
Additionally, the Committee may, in its sole discretion and in the course of its evaluation, 
request additional information in writing, hold additional in-person or teleconference 
interviews, arrange a site visit, or request presentations/demonstrations with one or more 
selected Offerors. 
 
2.1.3. Evaluation of Qualifications 
The criteria for evaluating the qualifications and selecting a consultant will include but not be 
limited to: 

2.1.3.1 The responsiveness of the offeror, and completeness and compliance with the terms 
of this RFQ. 
2.1.3.2 The firm’s specific approach to the project. Although the City has identified the 
general nature of services required, the consultant is encouraged to provide an innovative 
approach and methodology to provide the requested services. 
2.1.3.3 Capabilities and previous experience in comparable projects of this type, and the 
specialized experience and technical competence of the consultant to adequately engage 
the public. 
2.1.3.4 Past record of performance on contracts with other governmental agencies, 
including such factors as quality of work, letters of recommendation from past clients, and 
ability to meet established schedules. 
2.1.3.5 Capacity of the personnel to perform the work in a timely manner. 
2.1.3.6 Qualifications of individuals who will have direct involvement in tasks on this 
project. 
 

2.1.4 Consultants may contract with sub-consultants on the Plan, but a lead consultant must be 
identified and must take responsibility of all the deliverables. The City reserves the right to 
request substitution of firms. A response to this RFQ should not be deemed to be construed as 

140

Item 8.



Comprehensive Plan Services Page 13 of 23 

 

a contract or an indication of a commitment of any kind on the part of the City of Dripping 
Springs. Upon review of the responses to this RFQ, City staff may prepare a short list of 
consultants to interview. A firm will be selected for recommendation to the City Council for 
the purpose of negotiating contract terms, including a fair and reasonable price. Additional 
copies of the response to this RFQ may be required for presentation to the City Council. If a 
satisfactory contract cannot be negotiated with that firm, the City shall formally end 
negotiations with that firm and select the next most favored provider and attempt to negotiate 
with that firm. 
 
The City reserves the right to request additional information from individual consultants 
submitting responses. All responses are considered public records; each page deemed 
proprietary and confidential must be marked as such, but the final interpretation of public 
information will rest with the Attorney General. The City reserves the right to reject any or all 
responses and the right, in its sole discretion, to accept the responses it considers most 
favorable to the City’s interest. The City further reserves the right to reject all responses and 
seek new responses when such procedure is deemed reasonable and in its best interest. 

 
2.2. Award of Task Order(s) 
No guarantee is made by the City that any action or task order will be issued as a function of this 
RFQ and its responses, if any. Award of task order(s)/contract(s) shall be made to, and negotiated 
with, the responsible Offeror(s) whose Proposal is determined to be the most advantageous for the 
City, considering all of the evaluation factors set forth in this RFQ. The City of Dripping Springs 
reserves the right to reject any and all Proposals submitted in response to this RFQ. 
 

2.2.1 RFQ Timeline (subject to change): 
• Questions due by: 2 p.m. CST November 19, 2021 
• Proposals due by: 2 p.m. CST December 3, 2021 
• Proposal review: December 2021-January 2022 
• Interviews conducted (if any): January 2022 
Contract(s)/task order(s) discussion and approval by the Mayor and City Council is expected 
in January/February 2022. 

 
2.3 Method of Compensation 
Upon selection, the consultant will provide the necessary information for a task order to the City. 
The task order with the consultant is to be for a not-to-exceed amount for Comprehensive Plan 
services, as described herein, with reimbursement upon completion of agreed upon components of 
work, with a fee schedule for the remainder of requested services. The Planning Director and/or 
the Director’s designee will review and approve for payment all invoices submitted by the 
consultant under the contract. 
 
Qualification Requirements 
 
The Qualification must include the following: 
 

1. The Request for Qualification “Comprehensive Plan Services”. 

141

Item 8.



Comprehensive Plan Services Page 14 of 23 

 

2. An organization chart containing the names, addresses, telephone number, and email 
addresses of the prime provider, along with all sub provider’s key personnel proposed for 
the team and their contract responsibilities.  

3. The name of the prime provider’s project manager and key personnel who will work on 
the contract.  

4. Information providing team qualifications and capabilities, and understanding, similar 
project-related experience.  

5. Verification that the proposed team individuals are currently employed by either the prime 
provider or a sub provider.  

6. Name and Contact information for at least three (3) references for similar related projects 
(including mailing address, email address and telephone number).   References may be 
confirmed.  

7. Provide a description of your project approach and management plans relative to the 
advertised services.    

8. Describe ability to meet project time frame proposed by the City.  
 

General Requirements: 
 

A. Independent Consultant 
 
The selected Consultant shall not be an employee or officer of the City. The Consultant 
will act as an independent contractor and acquire no rights or benefits offered to 
employees of the City, its departments, or agencies.  
 

B. General Liability Insurance/Professional Liability – See attached “City of Dripping Springs 
Contractor Insurance Requirements.” 
 

C. Conflict of Interest Affidavit.  
 
Statement of Qualifications Submission Deadline: 
 

A. Statements of Qualifications must be addressed to Howard Koontz, 
hkoontz@cityofdrippingsprings.com,  and received at the City offices at 511 Mercer St, 
Dripping Springs TX 78620, Dripping Springs, TX, 78676 or 
hkoontz@cityofdrippingsprings.com at or before:  December 3rd, 2021. 

 
STATEMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS RECEIVED AFTER 2:00 PM WILL BE 
PLACED IN THE FILE UNOPENED AND WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED. NO 
EXCEPTIONS.  
 

B. Statements of qualifications must be submitted in a sealed envelope clearly bearing the 
name of the Applicant and address and bearing the words: “Comprehensive Plan 
Services”. 
 

142

Item 8.

mailto:hkoontz@cityofdrippingsprings.com


Comprehensive Plan Services Page 15 of 23 

 

C. One (1) Original and eight (8) copies and one (1) electronic copy (in PDF format) on CD 
or flash drive, of the Statement of Qualifications are required.  
 

D. Applicants are encouraged to verify that the City of Dripping Springs agency contact, the 
Planning Director, has received Qualifications. Any Qualifications received after the 
deadline will not be accepted.  
 

Award: 
 

1. The City reserves the right to reject any or all Applicants. 
 

2. After evaluations are complete, the City will rank the Applicants by total score, with the 
highest total score reflecting the best and most qualified Applicant. The City will enter into 
negotiations for compensation and other relevant issues with the Applicant deemed the best 
and most qualified.  
 

3. In the event the City is unable to negotiate a mutually acceptable contract with the selected 
Applicant, it reserves the right to terminate negotiations with the first choice and enter into 
negotiations with the following choice, and so on until the City enters into a Contract with 
a qualified firm.  
 

Written Agreement: 
 
The chosen Consultant will be required to negotiate a written agreement with the City.  
 
Omissions: 
 
Should this solicitation fail to contain sufficient information in order for interested Applicants to 
obtain a clear understanding of the services required by the City, or should it appear that the 
instructions outlined in the solicitation are not clear or are contradictory, any interested Applicant 
may in writing request clarification from the Planning Director no later than 2 p.m. November 19, 
2021. The interested Applicant shall email a copy of the written clarification request to the 
Planning Director, Howard Koontz at hkoontz@cityofdrippingsprings.com.  Written requests from 
interested Applicants and written responses by the City will be provided to all Applicants and be 
provided on the City’s website. 
 
Additional Information: 
 
Contact with persons other than the Planning Director as provided herein, may result in the 
disqualification of the Applicant’s submittal.  In fairness to all Applicants, the City will not 
communicate with anyone representing a potential provider of services during the RFQ process, 
except (1) as contemplated under Omissions hereinabove, (2) meetings and communications 
required to conduct business not related to the RFQ, and (3) possible personal presentations by 
Applicants after written submittals have been received and evaluated, if deemed necessary by 
City. 
 

143

Item 8.



Comprehensive Plan Services Page 16 of 23 

 

In addition, the City reserves the right to contact any Applicant for purposes of obtaining 
clarification of a submission, as deemed necessary after responses have been opened and also as 
contemplated above. 
 
Cost of Developing Statements of Qualifications: 
 
All costs related to the preparation of the statement of qualifications and any related activities are 
the sole responsibility of the Applicants. The City assumes no liability for any costs incurred by 
the Applicants throughout the entire selection process.  
 
Document Ownerships: 
 
All submittals, including attachments and supplementary materials shall become, upon 
submission, property of the City of Dripping Springs and will not be returned to the submitting 
Applicant.  
 
 
Attachments: 

• Attachment “A”: City of Dripping Springs Contractor Insurance Requirements 
• Attachment “B”: Response Form 
• Attachment “C”: Draft Professional Services Agreement  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

144

Item 8.



Comprehensive Plan Services Page 17 of 23 

 

ATTACHMENT “A” 
CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS PLANNING FIRM INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 
Planning Firm providing goods, materials and services for the City of Dripping Springs shall, 
during the term of the contract with the City of Dripping Springs or any renewal or extension 
thereof, provide and maintain the types and amounts of insurance set forth herein. All insurance 
and certificate(s) of insurance shall contain the following provisions: 
 

1. Name the City of Dripping Springs as additional named insured as to all applicable 
coverage. 

2. Provide for at least ten (10) days prior written notice to the City of Dripping Springs for 
cancellation, non-renewal, or material change of the insurance. 

3. Provide for a waiver of subrogation against the City of Dripping Springs for injuries, 
including death, property damage, or any other loss to the extent the same is covered by 
the proceeds of insurance. 

 
Insurance Company Qualification: All insurance companies providing the required insurance 
shall be authorized to transact business in Texas and rated at least “A” by AM Best or other 
equivalent rating service. 
 
Certificate of Insurance: Certificates of insurance evidencing all of the required insurance 
coverages shall be submitted with the Planning Firm’s submission. Copies of any modifications, 
amendments, renewals, or terminations of any coverage shall be promptly submitted to the City.  
If the contract is renewed or extended by the City of Dripping Springs, certificates of insurance 
evidencing all of the required insurance coverages shall also be provided to the City of Dripping 
Springs prior to the date the contract is renewed or extended. 
 
Type of Contract Type and Amount of Insurance 
 

▪ Statutory Workers Compensation insurance as required by state law. 
▪ Commercial General Liability minimum limits of $500,000 per occurrence for bodily 

injury, personal injury, and property damage.   
▪ Automobile Liability with a minimum of $500,000 Dollars combined single limit. 

Professional Services Professional Liability Insurance with a minimum of $1 Million Dollars per 
occurrence and $1 Million Dollars aggregate. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

145

Item 8.



Comprehensive Plan Services Page 18 of 23 

 

ATTACHMENT “B” 
RESPONSE FORM 

 
RESPONDER:  
 
Date:   
Company:   
Signature:  
  
Printed Name:  
  
Title:   
Address:  
 
  
Federal EIN #/SSN #  
 
 
Authorized Signature ___________________________________Date _________       Signature 
indicates bidder accepts the specifications, terms and conditions of this solicitation and that         
bidder is not delinquent on any payment due the City nor involved in any lawsuit against the 
City.   
       
Print  
Name_____________________________________ Title ______________________________ 
 
REFERENCES:  
Each Responder is to provide a minimum of three (3) verifiable business references for which the 
Responder has performed work.  
 
Company Name:  
 
 Address:  
Contact Person:  
 
 Telephone:   
Brief description of project:  
 
 
 
 
Company Name:  
 

146

Item 8.



Comprehensive Plan Services Page 19 of 23 

 

 Address:  
Contact Person:  
 
 Telephone:   
Brief description of project:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Company Name:  
 
 Address:  
Contact Person:  
 
 Telephone:   
 
Brief description of project:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Please provide the following information for contract development.  Is your firm: 
 
 Sole Proprietorship     YES  NO  
Partnership  YES  NO  
Corporation  YES  NO 
 
 
If company is a sole proprietorship, list the owner’s full legal name:  
 
 
If company is a partnership, list the partner(s) full legal name(s):  
 
 
If company is a corporation, list the full legal name as listed on the corporate charter:  
 
 

147

Item 8.



Comprehensive Plan Services Page 20 of 23 

 

ATTACHMENT “C” 
 

DRAFT PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

This Agreement, made and entered into this, the_____ day of ____________ 2021, and between 
the City of Dripping Springs, Texas (hereinafter referred to as the "City") and 
_____________________________, (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), is understood and 
agreed to be as set forth herein: 

 
1. Description of Services. The City and Contractor agree to the following: 

 
(a) Contractor shall deliver reports to City Hall via mail, in person, or other electronic means 

as appropriate. 
 

(b) Contractor shall attend meetings of City Council, Planning and Zoning Commission, 
Development Code Committee, and related committee meetings as needed to provide 
progress reports and drafts of the comprehensive plan services. 

 
(c) Contractor shall conduct business in good faith displaying professionalism and a 

courteous manner in dealings with the staff, citizens, and customers of the City. 
 

(d) Contractor will report to the City Administrator, verbally or in writing, any conflicts 
between Contractor and any citizen or customer in the course of performing said duties 
and responsibilities. 

 
(e) Contractor shall maintain complete and accurate records of work performed for the City. 

Contractor shall manage both public and confidential records that Contractor obtains 
pursuant to this Agreement with the understanding that some records may be subject to 
state open records laws. Contractor shall comply with the City's public information 
policies. 

 
(f) Performs other related duties as needed. 

 
2. Scope of Work. Contractor will provide consulting services related to the Comprehensive 

Plan and Development Code Services as described in Attachment “A”.  
 

3. Schedule. Work shall commence upon execution of this agreement and shall be completed 
within the schedule noted within the Scope of Services attached.  This Agreement shall be 
in effect for a period of one year unless terminated as provided below or if all work 
associated with Agreement is completed. Contractor shall start work immediately after the 
execution of this Agreement. 

 
4. Payment for Services. The City will compensate Contractor in accordance with the fee 

structure contained in Contractor's proposal attached as Attachment "A". Contractor shall 
invoice City in accordance with Contractor's attached proposal. Invoices will be submitted 
monthly and payment is due within 30 days of City’s receipt and approval of the invoice. 

148

Item 8.



Comprehensive Plan Services Page 21 of 23 

 

The total amount of this contract will not exceed _________________. Additional 
services and payment for additional services as relates to Attachment "A" must be approved 
in writing by the City prior to provision of such services. 
 

5. Relationship of Parties. It is understood by the parties that Contractor is an independent 
contractor with respect to the City and not an employee of the City. City will not provide 
fringe benefits, including health insurance benefits, paid vacation, or any employee benefit, 
for the benefit of Contractor. The City may contract with other individuals or firms for legal 
services. 

 
6. Limitations. During the period the Contractor is covered by this agreement, the Contractor 

will not be permit ted to perform any services for any agency, developer, contractor, or 
individual performing work within or for the City, or any project or construction that 
involves inspection, coordination, approval or in any other manner that involves the City 
other than that work assigned by an agency of the City. 

 
7. Termination. Either party may terminate this Agreement with thirty (30) days at any time 

with written notice to the other party. 
 
8. Injuries/ Insurance. Contractor acknowledges the contractor's obligation to obtain 

appropriate insurance coverage as listed in Attachment "B". 
 

9. Indemnification. Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold City harmless from all claims, 
losses, expenses, fees, including attorney's fees, costs, and judgments that may be asserted 
against City that result from acts or omissions of Contractor, Contractor 's employees, if any, 
and Contractor's agents. 

 
10. Assignment. Contractor's obligation under this Agreement may not be assigned or 

transferred to any other person, firm, or corporation without the prior written consent of City 
accept as provided for, and with the protections, described in Attachment " A". 

 
11. Notice. All notice required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall 

be delivered either in person or deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, 
addressed as follows: 

 
For the City:     For the Contractor: 
City of Dripping Springs      
Attn: City Administrator     
P.O. Box 384       
Dripping Springs, TX 78620      
(512) 858-4725      

 
Either party may change such address from time to time by providing written notice to the 
other in the manner set forth above. Notice is deemed to have been received three (3) days 
after deposit in U.S. mail. 

 

149

Item 8.



Comprehensive Plan Services Page 22 of 23 

 

12. Mandatory Disclosures. Texas law requires that vendors make certain disclosures. Prior to 
the effective date of this Contract, the Contractor has submitted to the City a copy of the 
Conflict of Interest Questionnaire form (CIQ Form) approved by the Texas Ethics 
Commission (Texas Local Government Code Chapter 176) and, by signing this Agreement, 
the Contractor affirms compliance with the Prohibition on Contracts with Companies 
Boycotting Israel (Texas Government Code Chapter 2270). The Contractor must also fill out 
Form 1295, as required by the Texas Ethics Commission, and submit it to the City. The form 
may be found here: https://www.ethics.state.tx .us/whatsnew/elf info form 1295.htm 
 

13. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable, 
then such provision shall be deemed to be written, construed, and enforced as so limited. 

 
14. Waiver of Contractual Right. The failure of any party to enforce any provision of this 

Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver of that party's right to subsequently enforce 
and compel strict compliance with every provision of the Agreement. 

 
15. Applicable Law: The laws of the State of Texas shall govern this Agreement. 

 
16. Venue: The venue for any and all legal disputes arising under this Agreement shall be Hays 

County, Texas. 
 

17. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire Agreement of the parties and there 
are no other promises or conditions in any other Agreement whether oral or written. This 
Agreement supersedes any prior written agreements between the parties. If there is any 
conflict between this Agreement and any Attachment, this Agreement controls. 

 
THE CITY:      CONTRACTOR: 
City of Dripping Springs      
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Michelle Fischer       
City Administrator       
 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Date       Date 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Andrea Cunningham 
City Secretary  

150

Item 8.



Comprehensive Plan Services Page 23 of 23 

 

  Attachment “A” 

Proposal 

 

 

151

Item 8.


	Top
	Item 1.	PZC: October 2021 Minutes
	10.12.21 PZC Minutes_draft
	10.26.21 PZC Minutes_draft

	Item 2.	SUB2021-0060 - Parten Ranch Ph 6 & 7 Prelim
	Sub2021-0060 StaffReport
	Sub2021-0060 Application
	Sub2021-0060 Preliminary Plat
	Sub2021-0060 Comments

	Item 3.	SUB2021-0061: Big Sky Ranch Phase 3 Final Plat
	Sub2021-0061 StaffReport
	SUB2021-0061 Application
	SUB2021-0061 FinalPlat
	SUB2021-0061 Comments

	Item 4.	SUB2021-0062 Big Sky Ranch Phase 4 Final Plat
	Sub2021-0062 StaffReport
	SUB2021-0062 Application
	SUB2021-0062Plat
	SUB2021-0062 Comments

	Item 5.	SUB2020-0040 Esperanza Ph 2 Final Plat
	Sub2020-0040 StaffReport
	Sub2020-0040 Application
	Sub2020-0040 Plat

	Item 6.	SUB2021-0046 Driftwood GRC Ph 3 Final Plat
	SUB2021-0046 StaffReport
	SUB2021-0046 Application
	SUB2021-0046 Plat

	Item 7.	SUB2021-0064 Caliterra Ph 4 Sec11 Final Plat
	Sub2021-0064 StaffReport
	Application
	Sub2021-0064 Plat
	Sub2021-0064 Comments

	Item 8.	EXEC:  Planning
	RFQ Comprehensive Plan Development Code_HK

	Bottom

